
September 27, 2023, 

BOARD OF HEALTH MEETING

Algoma Community Room / Videoconference

www.algomapublichealth.com



11.. Call to OrderCall to Order

22.. Adoption of AgendaAdoption of Agenda

33.. Adoption of MinutesAdoption of Minutes

44.. Delegation/PresentationsDelegation/Presentations

a. Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive
Officer Report

b. Finance and Audit

i. Governance Committee Chair Report -
September 13, 2023

43

c. Governance

i. Report of MOH CEO - September 2023 29

i. APH Unaudited Financial Statements for the
period ending July 31, 2023

35

66.. Reports to BoardReports to Board

a. Briefing Note - Situational awareness of public
health sector changes anticipated in 2024-2026

46

77.. New BusinessNew Business

88.. CorrespondenceCorrespondence

a. Declaration of Conflict of Interest

a. September 27, 2023, Board of Health Meeting
Agenda

5

a. June 28, 2023, Board of Health Meeting Minutes 9

a. Local Opioid Update - A holistic approach to
addressing & preventing substance use and opioid-
related harms

14

55.. Business ArisingBusiness Arising

ii. Policy 02-05-055 - Board of Health Self-
Evaluation

44

b. Strengthening Public Health Stakeholder Meeting
Presentation

53

T a b l e  o f  C o n t e n t s

Page 2 of 120



a. Letter to the Minister of Health from Algoma Public
Health regarding support for Bill S-254 an Act to
amend the Food and Drug Act (warning labels on
alcoholic beverages) dated June 8, 2023

62

b. Email to APH from the office of the Minister of
Health, response to letter in support of Bill S-254, an
Act to amend the Food and Drug Act, dated August
14, 2023.

64

c. Letter to the Premier of Ontario, from Public Health
Sudbury & Districts, regarding Bill 103, Smoke-Free
Ontario Amendment Act (Vaping is not for Kids),
2023, dated June 28, 2023.

66

d. Letter to Premier, Deputy Premier, the MCCSS,
from APH, re Income-based policy interventions to
effectively reduce household food insecurity (HFI),
dated July 4, 2023.

68

e. Letter to APH, from the Premier, response to
Income-based policy interventions to effectively
reduce household food insecurity (HFI) letter of July 4,
2023, dated September 20, 2023.

70

f. Letter to Deputy Premier and MOH, the CMOH,
from the AOPHBA, re encourage to create sustained
public health funding levels that are supportive of
public health's response to the requirements of the
Ontario Public Health Standards, dated July 7, 2023.

71

g. Letter to Minister of Health and Deputy Premier,
from Thunder Bay District Health Unit, regarding
Letter of Support - Physical Literacy for Healthy Active
Children, dated July 14, 2023.

74

h. Letter to Minister of Environment, Conservation and
Parks, from Timiskaming Health Unit, regarding
Request for Air Quality Monitoring Station in the
Timiskaming Health Unit Region, dated August 1,
2023.

87

i. Letter to Premier, Deputy Premier and MOH, City of
London, County of Middlesex, MPP London
Fanshawe, MPP London North Centre, MPP London
West, MPP Elgin-Middlesex-London, MPP for
Lambton-Kent-Middlesex, from MLHU, re MLHU 2024
Budget, August 2, 2023

89

j. Letter to the Deputy Premier and Minister of Health,
from the Association of Local Public Health Agencies,
regarding Public Health Funding and Capacity
Announcement, dated August 23, 2023.

90

k. Letter to partner agencies of the Simcoe Muskoka
District Health Unit, from Simcoe Muskoka District

92

Page 3 of 120



Health Unit, regarding notice of Clinical Service Vice
President and Chief Nursing Officer Position
Changes, dated September 1, 2023.

l. Letter to the Deputy Premier and Minister of Health,
from Simcoe Muskoka District Health Unit regarding
Bill 103, Smoke-Free Ontario Amendment Act (Vaping
is not for Kids), 2023, dated September 7, 2023.

93

m. Letter to the Minister of Finance, the Deputy
Premier and Minister of Health, from Huron Perth
Public Health, regarding Support for Healthy Public
Policy Regarding Alcohol Marketplace and Product
Sales, dated September 8, 2023.

96

n. Letter to the Premier of Ontario, from Huron Perth
Public Health, regarding Bill 93, Joshua's Law
(Lifejackets for Life), 2023, dated September 8, 2023.

100

a. alPHa Information Break - September 2023 105

b. 2023 alPHa Fall Symposium 117

99. . Items for InformationItems for Information

1414. . AnnouncementsAnnouncements

o. Letter to the Premier of Ontario, the Deputy
Premier, Minister of Health, from Timiskaming Health
Unit, regarding Universal, No-cost Coverage for all
Prescription Contraceptive Options for all Ontarians,
dated September 15, 2023.

102

c. Health Promotion Ontario White Paper on the Value
of Local Health Promotion

119

1010. . AddendumAddendum

1111. . In-CameraIn-Camera

1212. . Open MeetingOpen Meeting

1313. . Resolutions Resulting From In-CameraResolutions Resulting From In-Camera

a. Next Meeting Dates

1515. . AdjournmentAdjournment

Page 4 of 120



BOARD MEMBERS APH MEMBERS
PRESENSally Hagman - Chair Dr. Jennifer Loo - Medical Officer of Health & CEO

Luc Morrissette - 1st Vice-Chair Rick Webb - Director of Corporate Services
Deborah Graystone - 2nd Vice-Chair

Leo Vecchio - Manager of Communications
Donald McConnell Leslie Dunseath - Manager of Accounting Services
Loretta O'Neill Tania Caputo - Board Secretary
Sonia Tassone Trina Mount - Executive Assistant
Suzanne Trivers
Matthew Shoemaker
Jody Wildman

GUESTS

1.0 Meeting Called to Order S. Hagman
a. 
b.
c. 

2.0 Adoption of Agenda S. Hagman
Moved:

3.0 Delegations / Presentations
a. 

Moved:

4.0 Adoption of Minutes of Previous Meeting S. Hagman

5.0 Business Arising from Minutes S. Hagman

6.0 Reports to the Board

a. Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive Officer Reports J. Loo
i. 

Moved: E. Pearce

Kristy Harper - Director of Health Promotion & Chief Nursing Officer
Julila Hemphill

Hilary Cutler - Manager of Community Wellness

Board of Health Meeting 
AGENDA

September 27, 2023 at 5:00 pm
SSM Algoma Community Room │ Video/Teleconference 

RESOLUTION
THAT the Board of Health meeting minutes dated June 28, 2023, be approved as presented.

THAT the report of the Medical Officer of Health and CEO for September 27, 2023 be accepted as 
presented.

MOH Report - September 27, 2023
• Program Highlight –  Planning effective public health programs and services for 2024

RESOLUTION

H. Cutler

Land Acknowledgment
Declaration of Conflict of Interest
Roll Call

RESOLUTION
THAT the Board of Health meeting agenda dated September 27, 2023 be approved as presented.

Local Opioid Update - A holistic approach to addressing & preventing substance use and opioid-
related harms

Page 5 of 120



6.0 a. Finance and Audit L. Dunseath
i.

Moved:

b. D. Graystone

Moved:

i.
Moved:

7.0 New Business/General Business S. Hagman

a.

8.0 Correspondence S. Hagman
a. 

b.

c.

d.

Governance Committee Chair Report

Letter to Algoma Public Health, from the Premier of Ontario, response to Income-based policy 
interventions to effectively reduce household food insecurity (HFI) letter of July 4, 2023, dated 
September 20, 2023.

Letter to the Deputy Premier and Minister of Health, the Chief Medical Officer of Health, from the 
Association of Ontario Public Health Business Administrators, regarding encourage to create 
sustained public health funding levels that are supportive of public health's response to the 
requirements of the Ontario Public Health Standards, dated July 7, 2023. 

Letter to the Premier of Ontario, from Public Health Sudbury & Districts, regarding Bill 103, Smoke-
Free Ontario Amendment Act (Vaping is not for Kids), 2023, dated June 28, 2023.

RESOLUTION
THAT the Governance Committee Chair Report for September 13, 2023,  be accepted as presented.

Letter to the Premier of Ontario, the Deputy Premier, the Minister of Children, Community and 
Social Services, from Algoma Public Health, regarding Income-based policy interventions to 
effectively reduce household food insecurity (HFI), dated July 4, 2023.

RESOLUTION
THAT the Board of Health approves the Unaudited Financial Statements for the period ending July 31, 
2023, as presented.

Unaudited Financial Statements ending July 31, 2023

Policy 02-05-055 - Board Self-Evaluation
RESOLUTION

THAT the Board of Health approve Policy 02-05-055 - Board Self-Evaluation, as presented.

THAT the Board Chair ensures reporting back to the Board on this matter at future meetings.

Briefing Note - Situational awareness of public health sector changes anticipated in 2024-2026.

THAT the Board of Health for the District of Algoma Health Unit receive this briefing note for 
information; and

THAT the Board of Health for the District of Algoma Health Unit support the Board Chair and 
Medical Officer of Health to seek out opportunities to engage with the Ministry of Health, 
alongside northern Ontario municipal and Indigenous partners where appropriate, with regards to 
the provincial review of the funding methodology for public health, such that the realities of 
northern community health needs and public health service delivery in the north are accurately 
represented for consideration; and

THAT the Board of Health for the District of Algoma Health Unit support the Board Chair and 
Medical Officer of Health to engage with northeastern Ontario counterparts for further 
exploratory dialogue about voluntary mergers in light of recent provincial announcements and 
building on previous collaborations; and

Page 6 of 120



e.

f.

g.

h.

i.

j.

k.

l.

m.

9.0 S. Hagman

a. alPHa Information Break - September 2023

b.

10.0 S. Hagman

11.0 S. Hagman

Moved:

Letter to the Premier of Ontario, the Deputy Premier, Minister of Health, from Timiskaming Health 
Unit, regarding Universal, No-cost Coverage for all Prescription Contraceptive Options for all 
Ontarians, dated September 15, 2023.

Letter to Minister of Health and Deputy Premier, from Thunder Bay District Health Unit, regarding 
Letter of Support - Physical Literacy for Healthy Active Children, dated July 14, 2023.

Letter to Minister of Environment, Conservation and Parks, from Timiskaming Health Unit, 
regarding Request for Air Quality Monitoring Station in the Timiskaming Health Unit Region, 
dated August 1, 2023.

Letter to the Deputy Premier and Minister of Health, from the Association of Local Public Health 
Agencies, regarding Public Health Funding and Capacity Announcement, dated August 23, 2023.

Letter to partner agencies of the Simcoe Muskoka District Health Unit, from Simcoe Muskoka 
District Health Unit, regarding notice of Clinical Service Vice President and Chief Nursing Officer 
Position Changes, dated September 1, 2023.

Letter to the Deputy Premier and Minister of Health, from Simcoe Muskoka District Health Unit 
regarding Bill 103, Smoke-Free Ontario Amendment Act (Vaping is not for Kids), 2023, dated 
September 7, 2023. 

In-Camera

For discussion of labour relations and employee negotiations, matters about identifiable individuals, 
adoption of in-camera minutes, security of the property of the board, litigation or potential litigation.

RESOLUTION

THAT the Board of Health go in-camera.

Letter to the Premier of Ontario, the Deputy Premier and Minister of Health of Ontario, the City of 
London Council, the County of Middlesex Council, the Member of Provincial Parliament for 
London Fanshawe, the Member of Provincial Parliament for London North Centre, the Member of 
Provincial Parliament for London West, the Member of Provincial Parliament for Elgin-Middlesex-
London, the Member of Provincial Parliament for Lambton-Kent-Middlesex, from Middlesex-
London Health Unit, regarding Middlesex-London Health Unit 2024 Budget, dated August 2, 
2023.

Items for Information 

2023 alPHa Fall Symposium

Addendum

Letter to the Minister of Finance, the Deputy Premier and Minister of Health, from Huron Perth 
Public Health, regarding Support for Healthy Public Policy Regarding Alcohol Marketplace and 
Product Sales, dated September 8, 2023. 

Letter to the Premier of Ontario, from Huron Perth Public Health, regarding Bill 93, Joshua's Law 
(Lifejackets for Life), 2023, dated September 8, 2023.

Page 7 of 120



12.0 S. Hagman
Resolutions resulting from in-camera meeting.

13.0 Announcements / Next Committee Meetings: S. Hagman

Finance and Audit Committee Meeting
Wednesday October 11, 2023 - 5:00 pm
SSM Algoma Community Room │ Video Conference

Board of Health
Wednesday, October 25, 2023 - 5:00 pm
SSM Algoma Community Room │ Video Conference

14.0 Evaluation S. Hagman

a. Evaluation Summary

15.0 Adjournment S. Hagman

Moved: P. Avery

THAT the Board of Health meeting adjourns.

Open Meeting - 7:03 pm

RESOLUTION

Page 8 of 120



A holistic approach to addressing & preventing 
substance use and opioid-related harms

Hilary Cutler, Program Manager, Community Wellness 
September 27, 2023

Page 14 of 120



• Provincial & internal guidance documents
• The public health approach 
• Understanding the provincial & local situation 
• Next steps

Overview

Page 15 of 120



Ontario Public Health Standards

Ministry of Health, Ontario. Ontario Public Health Standards: Requirements for Programs, Services and Accountability. 2021.
https://www.health.gov.on.ca/en/pro/programs/publichealth/oph_standards/docs/protocols_guidelines/Ontario_Public_Health_Standards_2021.pdf

Page 16 of 120

https://www.health.gov.on.ca/en/pro/programs/publichealth/oph_standards/docs/protocols_guidelines/Ontario_Public_Health_Standards_2021.pdf


Strategic Directions

Page 17 of 120



The Public Health Approach

Page 18 of 120



The Public Health Approach

Jalali MS, Botticelli M, Hwang RC, Koh HK, McHugh RK. 2020. The opioid crisis: a contextual, social-ecological framework. Health research policy and systems. 18:1-9. Retrieved from https://health-policy-
systems.biomedcentral.com/articles/10.1186/s12961-020-00596-8

Page 19 of 120



The Public Health Approach

Page 20 of 120



Understanding the Provincial Situation:
Surveillance 

Gomes T, Leece P, Iacono A, Yang J, Kolla G, Cheng C, Ledlie S, Bouck Z, Boyd R, Bozinoff N, Campbell T, Doucette T, Franklyn M, Newcombe P, Pinkerton S, Schneider E, Shearer D, Singh S, 
Smoke A, Wu F, on behalf of the Ontario Drug Policy Research Network and Ontario Agency for Health Protection and Promotion (Public Health Ontario). Characteristics of substance-related toxicity 
deaths in Ontario: Stimulant, opioid, benzodiazepine, and alcohol-related deaths. Toronto, ON: Ontario Drug Policy Research Network; 2023.

Page 21 of 120



Understanding the Local Situation:
Surveillance 

ED Visits Hospitalizations Deaths EMS Calls (Count)

2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022
Algoma 226.4 224.7 31.7 32.7 49.5 47.7 440 370
NE LHIN 260.9 201.0 32.0 26.8 43.7 42.8

Northen 
PHUs 250.0 188.3 32.9 24.9 49.8 44.6
Ontario 114.0 80.0 19.0 13.1 19.2 16.8

• Algoma’s rate of opioid-related ED visits doubled from 2019- 2021; little change 2021-22
• Algoma’s rate of opioid-related hospitalizations in 2022 was more than double ON
• Algoma’s rate of opioid-related deaths nearly tripled that of the province in 2022
• Algoma’s opioid-related EMS calls saw a slight decrease of 16% between 2021-22

Ontario Agency for Health Protection and Promotion (Public Health Ontario). 2023. Interactive Opioid Tool. Toronto, ON: King’s Printer for Ontario. Accessed 2023, September 14).
Office of the Chief Coroner (OCC). July 2023. Opioid and Suspect Drug-Related Deaths in Ontario.
EMS Calls from District of Sault Ste. Marie Paramedic Services (Received 11 Sep 2023).
Population (estimates 2018-2021 and projections 2022 onwards) Ontario Ministry of  Health, IntelliHealth Ontario, July, 2023

Page 22 of 120



Understanding the Local Situation: Surveillance
Routine monitoring (weekly)

• 4 data sources: 
1. Calls to Sault Ste. Marie Paramedic Services
2. Emergency Department visits (suspected) 
3. Emergency Department visits (confirmed) – 

delayed by 1 week
4. Suspected drug-related deaths – delayed by 

1 week (new)
• Alerts to the public or service providers are 

issued when indicators cross the threshold for 
alerting

• Integrating community organization 
intelligence into alerting system (new)

Page 23 of 120



Understanding the Local Situation: Surveillance
Website update (quarterly)

Algoma Public Health. 2023. https://www.algomapublichealth.com/healthy-living/substance-use-harm-reduction/opioids/local-data/
Page 24 of 120



• Client & community partner interview project (2022-23)
• SSM & Area Drug Strategy Committee
• Strong partnerships for local action

Understanding the Local Situation
Local Voices

Page 25 of 120



Understanding the Local Situation
The Northern Ontario Context

Manuscripts for publication:
• Opioid-related deaths in Northern 

Ontario in the early COVID-19 
pandemic period

• Barriers to the delivery of opioid 
addictions management among 
physicians in rural and remote 
communities: a scoping review 

Page 26 of 120



• Continue front-line harm reduction, collaborative work with partners, 
surveillance enhancements, and strategic planning for holistic action

• Bolster prevention focus, shifting from pandemic priority of harm reduction
– Healthy Growth & Development: Healthy families; healthy relationships
– School Health: Focus on mental health & wellbeing; resiliency 
– Community Wellness: Polysubstance use planning

Next Steps

Page 27 of 120



Page 28 of 120



 
 
  

  

 

Prepared by:   
Dr. Jennifer Loo and the  
Leadership Team 
 
Presented to:  
Algoma Public Health Board of Health  

 

Report of the  

Medical Officer of Health / CEO 

September 27, 2023 
 

Newly installed welcome signage at the Sault Ste. Marie building entrance 

Page 29 of 120



Report of the Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive Officer 
September 27, 2023 
Page 1 of 5 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Program Highlights Pages 3-10 Program Highlights Pages  5 - 11 APH At-a-Glance Page   2 APH At-a-Glance Page   2 - 3 TABLE OF CONTENTS 

  

APH At-a-Glance and Our Partnerships Page 2 

Program Highlight - Planning effective public health 
programs and services for 2024 

Pages 3-5 

Page 30 of 120



Report of the Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive Officer 
September 27, 2023 
Page 2 of 5 
 

 

 
 
The summer of 2023 has been full of outreach and activity at APH.  
  
Over the course of the past three months, I have presented on APH’s programs and services at a number of 
Algoma’s municipal council meetings, with visits to the Town of Spanish, the City of Elliot Lake, the Township of 
the North Shore, the Town of Thessalon, and the Municipality of Wawa. These were welcome opportunities for 
me and the board of health representative for the area to highlight the breadth and value of APH services, 
describe how municipal levies contribute to the public health budget, listen to the health concerns of Algoma 
communities, respond to questions regarding priority health issues, and ultimately build and strengthen the 
longstanding partnership between local public health and Algoma municipalities. 
  
A key public health service to highlight is the important work of APH’s immunization team, which has been busy 
administering catch-up vaccines to school-aged children, and following up with families district wide to ensure 
updated immunization records are submitted to APH. In Ontario, under the Immunization of School Pupil’s Act 
(ISPA), it is mandatory for students to provide immunization records for specific vaccines in order to attend 
school. Early in the summer, APH sent over 6000 letters to families of children across Algoma who were not up to 
date with their required immunization records. Families were advised to submit updated records to APH, and if 
necessary, to receive catch-up vaccines through their health care provider. Additional vaccine clinics were also 
offered in all APH offices throughout the summer to allow students who do not have a regular primary care 
provider the opportunity to be immunized. From July 1 to mid September, APH public health nurses administered 
over 480 vaccines to school-aged children district wide. Meanwhile, APH continues to receive a large volume of 
immunization records submitted daily from the public. 
  
A visible change to APH’s public-facing image has also taken place this summer. Over the past year, APH has been 
working with Indigenous partners and language carriers to include Anishinaabemowin and Ililimowin (Cree) on our 
building signs. In this way, we show respect for the original languages of this land and can help Indigenous clients 
feel more comfortable accessing public health services. The translation of our building signs, and additional work 
to acknowledge the First Peoples of this land, are part of APH’s broader Indigenous engagement efforts with local 
partners to put the principles of respect, commitment, trust, and self-determination at the forefront of our work 
toward the shared goal of truth and reconciliation. 
  
As we enter into the fall season, there is no doubt that change is once again in the air for local public health.  In 
late August, the provincial government announced a number of changes to the structure and financing of local 
public health that are intended to occur over the period from 2024 to 2026. A summary of these announcements, 
along with historical background and implications for APH, are provided in the enclosed briefing note to the board 
of health. For board members who wish additional context and information, all reports and documents cited in 
the briefing note have been collated in the Board Effects library for reference. 
 
  

APH AT-A-GLANCE 

Page 31 of 120



Report of the Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive Officer 
September 27, 2023 
Page 3 of 5 
 

 

 

 
Topic: Planning effective public health programs and services for 2024 
 
From: Liliana Bressan, Manager of Effective Public Health Practice 
 
Ontario Public Health Standard (OPHS)1 requirements addressed in this report include: 
• Effective Public Health Practice: Public health practice is transparent, responsive to current and emerging 

evidence, and emphasizes continuous quality improvement. 
o Requirement 1:  Demonstrate the use of a systematic process to plan public health programs and services 

to address the needs of the community by integrating the best available research and evaluation evidence 
with contextual factors. 

 
2021-2025 Strategic Priorities addressed in this report2: 
[ ] Advance the priority public health needs of Algoma’s diverse communities.  
[x] Improve the impact and effectiveness of Algoma Public Health programs. 
[x] Grow and celebrate an organizational culture of learning, innovation, and continuous improvement.  
 
Key messages: 
• As part of the COVID-19 pandemic recovery and the restoration of core public health programs, there was an 

identified need for further internal support for planning at program and individual levels.  
• The Foundations and Strategic Support Team (FASST) designed tools and facilitated 30 capacity-building 

exercises to support planning. As of September, programs have completed the first draft of Standard 
Implementation Plans for 2024.  

• The focus of FASST for 2024 will be to (a) facilitate consultations for planning support and conducting 
situational assessments, (b) develop capacity-building exercises and tools to support evaluation, and 
(c) further integrate a health equity lens into planning.  
 

Overview of evidence-informed planning in public health  
As detailed in the OPHS, effective public health practice requires the application of skills in evidence-informed 
decision-making, research, knowledge exchange, program planning and evaluation, and communication.1 
Program planning and evaluation are part of an ongoing and iterative program development and improvement 
cycle.1 A public health program is a plan of action intended to achieve specific outcomes for population health.1 
 
Planning involves a series of decisions based on collecting and analyzing a wide range of information.3 The model 
used for planning at Algoma Public Health (APH) is “APIE,” to assess, plan, implement, and evaluate. 
 
For local public health programs and services to be effective, they must be aligned with the needs of the local 
population, including priority populations. This requires conducting situational assessments to inform planning 
decisions.4 Situational assessments support the integration of the best available research and evaluation evidence 
with contextual factors such as local population health issues, priority populations, community assets and needs, 
political climate, public engagement, and available resources.1 Through this detailed assessment, evidence-
informed plans are developed to guide implementation that can later be evaluated.  

 
1 Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care. Ontario Public Health Standards. 2021. Available from: 
https://www.health.gov.on.ca/en/pro/programs/publichealth/oph_standards/docs/protocols_guidelines/Ontario_Public_Health_Standards_2021.pdf 
2 Algoma Public Health. Strategic Plan. 2020. Available from: https://www.algomapublichealth.com/about-us/strategic-plan/ 
3 Public Health Ontario. Planning Health Promotion Programs. 2019. Available from https://www.publichealthontario.ca/en/Health-Topics/Public-Health-
Practice/Program-Planning-Evaluation/Planning-Programs 
4 Ontario Agency for Health Protection and Promotion (Public Health Ontario), Meserve A, Bergeron, K. Focus on: Six strategic steps for situational 
assessment. 2015. Available from: https://www.publichealthontario.ca/-/media/documents/f/2015/focus-on-situational-assessment.pdf?sc_lang=en 

PROGRAM HIGHLIGHT 

Page 32 of 120



Report of the Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive Officer 
September 27, 2023 
Page 4 of 5 
 

 

 

Effective planning and associated documents underpin the public health accountability framework, specifically the 
delivery of program and services domain where we must be accountable for the delivery of programs and services 
to achieve outcomes in accordance with Ministry guidance.1 
 
The value of effective program planning   
Effective public health planning that is informed by evidence has many benefits, including a higher likelihood of 
successful programs and policies being implemented and more efficient use of public resources.5,6 As a 
community, we can see the highest return on investment when interventions implemented are known to yield the 
highest health return (e.g., changes in health behaviors), based on evidence and practice. 5, 6   

 
Levels of planning  
There are three levels of planning in local public health:  
 
1. Strategic, including the Ontario Public Health Standards, APH’s Strategic Plan, and the Health Protection and 

Promotion Act, which are documents that detail our vision, mission, mandates, and population-level outcome 
goals.  

2. Program plans, including Standard Implementation Plans (SIPs) and activity-based logic models that 
operationalize how we move towards the strategic level plans. These plans include goals, objectives, activities, 
and indicators.  

3. Individual plans, such as person or team-specific work plans (e.g., Gantt chart) help organize actions needed 
to complete program activities. These plans support implementation, with details such as roles, tasks, action 
steps, and timelines.  

Each level of planning must align to ensure that actions at the individual level help to deliver on program activities 
that meet Ministry requirements and align with strategic directions to move the organization toward its mission 
and vision.  
 
Within APH, our planning cycle begins in the spring and focuses on program- and individual-level planning for the 
next calendar year.  
 
Foundational and strategic support for program planning  
As part of COVID-19 pandemic recovery and the restoration of core public health programs, there was an 
identified need in 2022 for further structure and support for planning at program and individual levels within 
public health programs at APH.  
 
Throughout Winter 2022 – Spring 2023, the planning and evaluation team within FASST designed an interactive, 
step-by-step planning guide to support program planning for 2024, including a learning module, revised SIP 
template for program planning, and tools for individual-level planning (e.g., situational assessment module, logic 
model template, and Gantt chart template).  
 
Thirty internal capacity-building workshops on planning were conducted with program managers, health 
promotion specialists, and staff from June to August 2023 to increase understanding of, and confidence in, 
engaging in the planning process at the program level.  
 
As of September 2023, all programs have completed their first draft of SIPs for the 2024 calendar year, aligning 
Ministry requirements with goals, objectives, activities, resources, timelines, outputs, outcomes, and indicators 
(i.e., program, population, and reporting) for monitoring and evaluation.  

 
5 Brownson RC, Fielding JE, Maylahn CM. Evidence-based public health: a fundamental concept for public health practice. Annual review of public health. 
2009 Apr 21;30:175-201. 
6 Kneale D, Rojas-García A, Raine R, Thomas J. The use of evidence in English local public health decision-making: a systematic scoping review. 
Implementation Science. 2017 Dec;12(1):1-2. 

Page 33 of 120



Report of the Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive Officer 
September 27, 2023 
Page 5 of 5 
 

 

 
These plans are living documents that will be updated routinely to reflect progress and be used for 
communication between Senior Leadership, Leadership, and front-line staff on program activities. They are also 
used to inform the Board of Health’s Annual Service Plan submission, as SIPs detail how teams will operationalize 
strategic directions and priorities in accordance with the OPHS.1  
                                                                                      
Our way forward: Continuing to enhance planning and preparing to support evaluation  
For the remainder of 2023, FASST’s planning and evaluation team will continue providing consultative support to 
programs and public health staff on program- and individual-level planning informed by evidence.  
As we move to 2024, priorities include:  
• Evaluating the templates and tools used for program planning (i.e., functionality, use, field needs, capacity 

building needs, etc.) to inform further updates to our internal approach for the 2024-2025 planning cycle.  
• Working with the health equity team to further integrate a health equity lens when conducting situational 

assessments.  
• Providing foundational and strategic support to managers and staff for activities listed within program plans 

(e.g., surveillance, planning, evaluation, evidence, policy) through consults or project collaborations.  
• Designing tools, templates, and capacity-building activities to support program- and activity-level evaluations. 

The intent is to launch evaluation resources as part of the 2024-2025 planning cycle.  

 

Page 34 of 120



Algoma Public Health
(Unaudited) Financial Statements

Index Page
 Statement of Operations 1
 Statement of Revenues - Public Health 2
 Statement of Expenses - Public Health 3

 Notes to the Financial Statements 4-6

 Statement of Financial Position 7

July 31, 2023

Page 35 of 120



Algoma Public Health
Statement of Operations 
July 2023
(Unaudited)

Actual Budget Variance Annual Variance % YTD Actual/
YTD YTD Act. to Bgt. Budget Act. to Bgt. YTD Budget
2023 2023 2023 2023 2023 2023

Public Health Programs (Calendar)
Revenue
Municipal Levy - Public Health 3,141,913$         3,141,912$       1$                   4,189,216$     0% 100%
Provincial Grants - Cost Shared Funding 5,130,539 5,130,533 6                     8,795,200 0% 100%
Provincial Grants - Public Health 100% Prov. Funded 1,265,423 1,276,333 (10,910)           3,266,089 -1% 99%
Provincial Grants - Mitigation Funding 605,386 605,383 3                     1,037,800 0% 100%
Fees, other grants and recovery of expenditures 285,608 275,974 9,634              452,384 3% 103%
Total Public Health Revenue 10,428,869$       10,430,136$     (1,266)$           17,740,689$   0% 100%

Expenditures
Public Health Cost Shared 9,386,471$         9,174,486$       (211,985)$      15,539,327$   2% 102%
Public Health 100% Prov. Funded Programs 1,442,278 1,271,856 (170,422)        2,201,363 13% 113%
Total Public Health Programs Expenditures 10,828,749$       10,446,342$     (382,407)$      17,740,690$   4% 104%

Total Rev. over Exp. Public Health (399,880)$           (16,206)$           (383,674)$      (0)$                  

Healthy Babies Healthy Children (Fiscal)
Provincial Grants and Recoveries 356,011$            356,004            7                     1,068,011       0% 100%
Expenditures 354,166              357,673            3,507              1,068,011       -1% 99%
Excess of Rev. over Exp. 1,845                  (1,669)               3,514              (0)                    

Public Health Programs (Fiscal)
Provincial Grants and Recoveries 236,085$            236,100 (15)                  236,100          0% 100%
Expenditures 329,148              175,000            (154,148)        236,100          88% 188%
Excess of Rev. over Fiscal Funded (93,063)               61,100              (154,163)        -                  

Fiscal Programs
Revenue
Provincial Grants - Community Health 104,052$            104,051$          1$                   262,153$        0% 100%
Municipal, Federal, and Other Funding 57,222 57,224 (2)                    114,447 0% 100%
Total Community Health Revenue 161,274$            161,275$          (1)$                  376,600$        0% 100%

Expenditures
Brighter Futures for Children 25,760 38,149 12,389            114,447 -32% 68%
Nurse Practitioner 55,130 54,051 (1,079)             162,153 2% 102%
Stay on Your Feet 30,776 33,333 2,557              100,000 -8% 92%
Total Fiscal Community Health Programs 111,666$            125,533$          13,867$          376,600$        -11% 89%

Total Rev. over Exp. Fiscal Community Health 49,608$              35,741$            13,866$          (0)$                  

Explanations will be provided for variances of 15% and $15,000 occurring in the first 6 months
and variances of 10% and $10,000 occurring in the final 6 months
 

Page 1 of 7

Page 36 of 120



Algoma Public Health
Revenue Statement
For Seven Months Ending July 31, 2023 Comparison Prior Year:
(Unaudited) Actual Budget Variance Annual Variance % YTD Actual/

YTD YTD Bgt. to Act. Budget Act. to Bgt. Annual Budget YTD Actual YTD BGT
2023 2023 2023 2023 2023 2023 2022 2022

Levies Sault Ste Marie 2,185,241 2,185,241 0 2,913,655 0% 75% 2,213,793 2,213,793 0
Levies District 956,672 956,671 1 1,275,561 0% 75% 928,119 928,119 0
Total Levies 3,141,913 3,141,912 1 4,189,216 0% 75% 3,141,912 3,141,912 0

MOH Public Health Funding 5,130,539 5,130,533 6 8,795,200 0% 58% 5,079,729 5,108,758 (29,029)
Total Public Health Cost Shared Funding 5,130,539 5,130,533 6 8,795,200 0% 58% 5,079,729 5,108,758 (29,029)

MOH Funding - MOH / AMOH Top Up 106,470 110,425 (3,955) 189,300 -4% 56% 105,845 110,425 (4,580)
MOH Funding Northern Ontario Fruits & Veg. 68,486 68,483 3 117,400 0% 58% 68,486 68,483 3
MOH Funding Unorganized 309,400 309,400 0 530,400 0% 58% 309,400 309,400 0
MOH Senior Dental 730,857 730,858 (1) 1,252,900 0% 58% 592,107 630,997 (38,890)
MOH Funding Indigenous Communities 57,164 57,167 (3) 98,000 0% 58% 57,164 57,167 (3)
One Time Funding (Pandemic Pay) 0 0 0 0 #DIV/0! 0% 0
OTF COVID-19 Extraordinary Costs (6,954) 0 (6,954) 1,078,089 #DIV/0! -1% 1,282,446 1,289,400 (6,954)
Total Public Health 100% Prov. Funded 1,265,423 1,276,333 (10,910) 3,266,089 -1% 39% 2,415,448 2,465,872 (50,424)

Total Public Health Mitigation Funding 605,386 605,383 3 1,037,800 0% 58% 583,763 605,381 (21,618)

Recoveries from Programs 7,213 25,833 (18,621) 10,000 -72% 72% (28,676) 23,283 (51,959)
Program Fees 28,771 34,767 (5,996) 79,600 -17% 36% 36,243 30,116 6,127
Land Control Fees 126,400 135,000 (8,600) 225,000 -6% 56% 153,595 105,000 48,595
Program Fees Immunization 3,807 52,500 (48,693) 50,000 -93% 8% 11,039 29,162 (18,123)
HPV Vaccine Program 9,996 0 9,996 9,500 #DIV/0! 105% 0 0 0
Influenza Program 730 0 730 23,500 #DIV/0! 3% 0 0 0
Meningococcal C Program 1,479 0 1,479 7,000 #DIV/0! 21% 0 0 0
Interest Revenue 107,215 19,124 88,091 32,784 461% 327% 19,124 11,669 7,455
Other Revenues 0 8,750 (8,750) 15,000 -100% 0% 9,000 4,083 4,917
Total Fees and Recoveries 285,611 275,974 9,637 452,384 3% 63% 200,326 203,314 (2,988)

Total Public Health Revenue Annual 10,428,872 10,430,136 (1,264) 17,740,689 0% 59% 11,421,178 11,525,237 (104,059)

Public Health Fiscal April 2023 - March 2024
Infection Prevention and Control Hub 0 0 0 0 #DIV/0! 0%
School Nurses Initiative 175,000 175,000 0 175,000 0% 100%
Upgrade Network Switches 61,085 61,100 (15) 61,100 0% 100%

Total Provincial Grants Fiscal 236,085 236,100 (15) 236,100 0% 100% 0 0 0

Variance  2022

Page 2 of 7

Page 37 of 120



Algoma Public Health
Expense Statement- Public Health
For Seven Months Ending July 31, 2023
(Unaudited)

Comparison Prior Year:
Actual Budget Variance Annual Variance % YTD Actual/
YTD YTD Act. to Bgt. Budget Act. to Bgt.  Budget YTD Actual YTD BGT
2023 2023 2023 2023 2023 2023 2022 2022

.
Salaries & Wages 6,105,452 6,241,138 135,686 10,699,084 -2% 57% 6,009,875$   6,537,843$   527,968$   
Benefits 1,638,900 1,465,334 (173,566) 2,512,002 12% 65% 1,466,871 1,527,579 60,708
Travel 110,044 92,634 (17,410) 158,800 19% 69% 69,835 110,078 40,243
Program 960,124 717,201 (242,923) 1,237,163 34% 78% 592,159 751,625 159,466
Office 37,281 48,067 10,786 82,400 -22% 45% 29,476 39,317 9,841
Computer Services 551,462 522,604 (28,858) 895,895 6% 62% 509,509 497,241 (12,268)
Telecommunications 175,504 154,582 (20,922) 265,000 14% 66% 192,208 191,058 (1,150)
Program Promotion 25,401 26,250 849 45,000 -3% 56% 29,149 49,544 20,394
Professional Development 36,272 46,914 10,642 80,424 -23% 45% 14,447 50,249 35,802
Facilities Expenses 582,546 537,750 (44,796) 924,000 8% 63% 755,135 645,395 (109,740)
Fees & Insurance 338,934 327,042 (11,892) 383,500 4% 88% 290,996 272,175 (18,821)
Debt Management 266,829 266,829 0 457,421 0% 58% 266,829 266,829 0
Recoveries 0 0 0 0 #DIV/0! 0% (6,750) (15,750) (9,000)

10,828,749$     10,446,345$   ( 382,404 )$        17,740,689$   4% 61% 10,219,739$    10,923,182$   703,443$        

Variance  2022

Page 3 of 7

Page 38 of 120



Notes to Financial Statements – July 2023 
 
Reporting Period 
 
The July 2023 financial reports include seven months of financial results for Public Health. All other non-
funded public health programs are reporting four months of results from the operating year ending 
March 31, 2024.  
 
Statement of Operations (see page 1) 
 
Summary – Public Health and Non-Public Health Programs 
 
In August 2023, APH received the 2023 Amending Agreement from the province identifying the 
approved funding allocations from the province for public health programs. The annual budgets for 
public health programs will be updated alongside the August 2023 unaudited financial statements to 
reflect these changes, however we note the following allocations to be of significant note: 
 

• A 1% or $88,000 increase to base funding for cost-shared mandatory programs (pro-rated for 
the months of April through December) 

• A $129,800 annualized increase in base funding for the Ontario Senior Dental Care Program 
(pro-rated for the months of April through December) 

• One-time fiscal funding totaling $328,000 for special initiatives (including COVID school focused 
nurses which were funded from April through June of 2023) 

 
As of July 31, 2023, Public Health calendar programs are reporting a $384K negative variance – the 
majority of which is driven by a $382K negative variance in expenditures.  
 
Public Health Revenue (see page 2)  
 
Our Public Health calendar revenues are within 1% of budget for 2023.  
 
Although the province has confirmed that one-time extraordinary cost reimbursement for the COVID 19 
programs will continue through 2023 (with approval and on-going funding to be based off of our Annual 
Service Plan and quarterly submissions to the province), no allocations have been provided to date. Our 
Annual Service Plan was submitted to the Ministry on April 3, 2023, and our Q2 Standards Activity report 
was submitted to the Ministry on July 31, 2023, forecasting the need for $488K in COVID 19 one-time 
funds for the 2023 calendar year.  
 
To date for the fiscal year ending March 2024, funding has been approved totaling $175K for 
continuation of the COVID School Focused Nurse initiative which expired in June 2023. $61K of one-time 
funding related to upgrading of essential IT network switches has also been carried over from fiscal 
2022-23 as approved by the Ministry in March 2023. Although it has been confirmed that temporary 
IPAC Hub funding will continue into the 2023-24 fiscal year, APH has not yet received confirmed funding 
allocations. APH has recently shared with the Ministry our input towards a 2023-24 budget for this 
program and we expect to receive feedback shortly. Funding requests for other one-time initiatives 
were submitted alongside APH’s annual service plan for which we have been allocated $153,000 for the 
2023-24 fiscal year – these budgets are to be updated alongside the August 2023 unaudited financial 
statements.  

Page 4 of 7

Page 39 of 120



Notes Continued… 

 

 
No funding has been approved to date for COVID Recovery initiatives ($650K was requested in 2022).  
 
 
Public Health Expenses (see page 3) 
 
Salaries & Benefits 
There is a $38K negative variance associated with salaries and benefits. This is driven by the increased 
cost of non-statutory benefits caused by significantly increased usage year over year.  
 
Travel 
There is a $17K negative variance associated with travel expenses. This is a result of management and 
front-line staff increasing travel related to district recovery work and also increased travel related to 
professional development opportunities.  
 
Programs 
There is a $243K negative variance associated with programs. This is driven by ongoing COVID recovery 
initiatives (leadership and workforce development programs), physician coverage as well as increasing 
program demand for our Ontario Senior Dental program. We note that APH has requested an increase 
to base funding for the 100% funded Ontario Senior Dental program with the 2023 Annual Service Plan 
to fund these identified pressures. Although only a portion of our request has been approved to date, 
conversations with the Ministry related to required funding to maintain this program are ongoing.  
 
Telecommunications 
There is a $21K negative variance associated with telecommunications driven by ongoing needs 
associated with implementation of retrofitting our office telecommunication systems for current needs 
based on full staff return to the office (which will result in cost savings of at least $3K per month moving 
forward).  
 
COVID-19 Expenses 
 
COVID-19 Response 
This program includes case and contact management as well as supporting the information phone lines. 
July year to date expenses were $132K (versus $1,762K this time last year).  
 
COVID-19 Mass Immunization 
This program includes the planning, support, documentation, and actual needles in arms of the various 
COVID-19 vaccines. July year to date expenses were $140K (versus $833K this time last year).   
 
The majority of these costs consist of salaries and benefits costs of APH staff associated with the hours 
committed year to date to COVID response activities (versus work completed under normal ‘home’ 
program delivery). 
 
Financial Position - Balance Sheet (see page 7) 
 
APH’s liquidity position continues to be stable, and the bank has been reconciled as of July 31, 2023. 
Cash includes $2.0M in short-term investments.  
 

Page 5 of 7

Page 40 of 120



Notes Continued… 

 

Long-term debt of $4.1 million is held by TD Bank @ 1.80% for a 60-month term (amortization period of 
120 months) and matures on September 1, 2026. $239k of the loan relates to the financing of the Elliot 
Lake office renovations, which occurred in 2015 with the balance, related to the financing of the 294 
Willow Avenue facility located in Sault Ste. Marie. There are no material accounts receivable collection 
concerns.  

Page 6 of 7

Page 41 of 120



(Unaudited)
July December
2023 2022

Assets

Current
Cash & Investments $ 5,405,117 $ 6,759,408
Accounts Receivable 956,348 1,550,507
Receivable from Municipalities 55,592 6,482                  
Receivable from Province of Ontario

Subtotal Current Assets 6,417,057        8,316,397           

Financial Liabilities:
   Accounts Payable & Accrued Liabilities 1,276,724 1,319,570
   Payable to Gov't of Ont/Municipalities 2,369,318 4,628,303
   Deferred Revenue 271,319 317,901
   Employee  Future Benefit Obligations 2,849,656 2,849,656
   Term Loan 3,702,106 3,702,106

Subtotal Current Liabilities 10,469,123 12,817,535         

Net Debt (4,052,066) (4,501,139)

Non-Financial Assets:
   Building 23,012,269 23,012,269
   Furniture & Fixtures 2,113,823 2,113,823
   Leasehold Improvements 1,583,166 1,583,166
   IT 3,284,893 3,284,893
   Automobile 40,113 40,113
   Accumulated Depreciation -12,619,708 -12,619,708

Subtotal Non-Financial Assets 17,414,556 17,414,556

Accumulated Surplus 13,362,490 12,913,417

Algoma Public Health
Statement of Financial Position

Date:  As of July 2023

Page 7 of 7

Page 42 of 120



Governance Report  
Mee�ng September 13, 2023 

 
Commitee Atendees:  
Loreta O’Neill 
Deborah Graystone – Chair 
 
Commitee Atendees Electronically: 
Sonia Tassone 
Mathew Shoemaker 
Jody Wildman  
 
APH Members in-Person: 
Dr. Jennifer Lou -Medical Officer of Health/CEO 
Rick Webb – Director of Corporate Services  
Tanya Caputo – Execu�ve Assistant Medical Officer of Health 
 
Regrets: 
Dr. John Tuinema – Associate Medical Officer of Health 
 
Minutes of the Governance Mee�ng for May 17, 2023 were approved. 
 
Policy #02-05-086 Sponsorship of Charitable Organiza�ons was re-submited to the staff for 
review and recommenda�ons for clarifica�on to the last line referring “Any ac�vi�es that 
involve direct sponsorship with a private/for profit corpora�on will be reviewed with the Board 
of Health”. 
By-Law 06-01 Sewage Systems Part 8 of the Ontario Building Code Act was approved as is with 
the understanding that amendments and updates to “Schedule “A” regarding Sewage System 
Permit Applica�on Fees will be reviewed by APH staff and forwarded to the Finance Commitee 
for review and approval. This will be brought directly to the Board of Health for final review and 
approval.  
Policy #02-05-055 Board of Health Monthly Mee�ng and Self-Evalua�on was reviewed with 
discussion about the frequency of evalua�ons and presenta�ons to the Board.  Recommended 
amendments were made to reduce monthly mee�ng evalua�ons twice a year.  
 
 
 

Page 43 of 120



PAGE: 1 of 2 REFERENCE #: 02-05-055 
 

Algoma Public Health – Policy and Procedure Manual – Board Policies and Bylaws 
 
APPROVED BY: Board of Health REFERENCE #: 02-05-055 
    
DATE: Original:  May 20, 2015 SECTION: Policies 
 Revised: Jun 22, 2016   
 Reviewed: Jun 28, 2017   
 Revised: Nov 28, 2019 

Revised: Sep 22, 2021 
SUBJECT: Board of Health Monthly 

Meeting and Self-Evaluation  
Policy 

    

POLICY: 

The Board of Health shall have an annual self-evaluation process of its governance practices and 
outcomes that is implemented every year and may result in recommendations for improvements in 
leadership excellence, board effectiveness, engagement and performance. The Board may also 
supplement its evaluation tools seeking evaluation by key partners and/or stakeholders and/or governance 
consultants when issues are identified in its self-evaluation that requires further investigation, 

Bi-Annual self-evaluation 

The self-evaluation process shall include consideration of whether: 

 Decision-making is based on access to appropriate information with sufficient time for deliberations 

 Compliance with all federal and provincial regulatory requirements is achieved; 

 Any material notice of wrongdoing or irregularities is responded to in a timely manner; 

 Reporting systems provide the Board with information that is timely and complete; 

 Members remain abreast of major developments in governance and public health best practices, 
including emerging practices among peers; and 

 The Board members are actively engaged in discussing agenda items that focus on strategic results, 
policy issues and solutions rather than on day-to-day operational issues 

 The Board monitors fiscal and program and services performance 

 
Monthly Board meeting Evaluation 
 
The Board of Health shall have meeting evaluation process that results in improved Board of Health meeting 
effectiveness. Meeting evaluation will be a standing agenda item on the Board Agenda, At the conclusion of 
each meeting, the Bboard members are encouraged to complete the electronic evaluation biannually. 
Meeting evaluation results will be reviewed by the Board of Hhealth Chair and presented to the Board of 
Health two times a year three (3) times a year  
 
The Board of Health will maintain a record of its members’ attendance. The summary will be reviewed by the 
Board of Health Chair on an annual basis as noted in the Board’s annual work plan. 
 

  

Page 44 of 120



PAGE: 2 of 2 REFERENCE #: 02-05-055 
 

 

 

PROCEDURES: 

 Bi-Annual Self-Evaluation 

Board of Health Member 1. Complete the Board of Health Self-Evaluation Survey including 
board member name after the November and MayJune Board 
meetings.. 

 2. The completed evaluations will be collected and the results 
compiled by the board secretary and forwarded to the Board 
Chair 

Board Secretary 3. Will compile evaluations into a report and for the Chair to  
present at the January and June September Board meeting as 
noted in the Board’s annual work plan.meetings. 
Recommendations based on the evaluation results will be 
determined by the board.  

  

 Monthly Board Meeting Evaluation 

Board of Health Member 1. Complete the Board of Health Meeting Evaluation Survey after 
each regularly scheduled Board meeting. 

 
Board Secretary 

 

 

 

2. The completed evaluations will be collected and the results 
compiled by the board secretary.  

3. Will compile evaluations and forward to the Board Chair to 
review three times per year. 

4. Results will be presented in the Board of Health meeting 
package three times per year. 

 

 

 

 
 

KNOWLEDGE: 

Board Member Self-Evaluation of Performance Template 

Board Monthly Meeting Evaluation Template  
 
 

Page 45 of 120



           Briefing Note 
 

Health for all. Together. 

www.algomapublichealth.com 

 
 

☒For Information ☒For Discussion ☒For a Decision 
 
 

ISSUE: 
Public health sector changes are anticipated in 2024-2026.  The provincial government has announced intentions to: 
 

1. Conduct a review of the Ontario Public Health Standards (OPHS), with an intent to identify roles and 
responsibilities that can be refined or stopped, and/or “re-leveled” to a regional or provincial level, and 
implement a revised OPHS by January 1, 2025; 
 

2. Support a coordinated approach to voluntary mergers of local public health units through the development 
of criteria, parameters and accountability mechanisms via stakeholder consultations in fall 2023, submission 
of proposals via the 2024 annual service plan (ASP) and budget submission, initiation of voluntary mergers by 
January 2025, with time-limited Merger Support Funding from 2024-2026 to resource merger 
implementation and facilitate business continuity; 

 
3. Conduct a review of the ministry’s funding methodology for public health, with a new funding approach to 

be communicated in spring of 2025 and implemented in 2026; and meanwhile provide stable funding for the 
local public health sector during this period of change by  

 
(a) returning health unit base funding to levels previously provided in 2020 (i.e. prior to the change in the 

municipal cost-share ratio from 75:25 to 70:30); and 
 

(b) providing growth funding of 1% per year over the three years from 2024-2026. 
 

There is uncertainty with regards to how this period of change will impact Algoma Public Health and the provision of 
public health programs and services to local communities. Provincial communication frames these initiatives as aiming 
to optimize capacity, stability and sustainability in the public health sector.  The province identifies its strategy as 
grounded in a locally-driven approach, equipped with provincial resources to facilitate change while ensuring front-
line jobs and local public health programs and services are retained and strengthened.  At the time of writing, the 
ministry has not yet engaged further with the field to elaborate on these initiatives. 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
That the Board of Health resolve to support the following recommendations: 

1. That the Board of Health for the District of Algoma Health Unit receive this briefing note for information. 
 

To: The Board of Health for the District of Algoma Health Unit 
From: Dr. Jennifer Loo, Medical Officer of Health & CEO 
Date: 9/27/2023 
Re: BOH situational awareness of public health sector changes anticipated in 2024-2026 

Page 46 of 120



Briefing Note  Page 2 of 8 
 

2. That the Board of Health for the District of Algoma Health Unit support the Board Chair and Medical Officer of 
Health to seek out opportunities to engage with the Ministry of Health, alongside northern Ontario municipal 
and Indigenous partners where appropriate, with regards to the provincial review of the funding 
methodology for public health, such that the realities of northern community health needs and public health 
service delivery in the north are accurately represented for consideration. 
 

3. That the Board of Health for the District of Algoma Health Unit support the Board Chair and Medical Officer of 
Health to engage with northeastern Ontario counterparts for further exploratory dialogue about voluntary 
mergers in light of recent provincial announcements and building on previous collaborations. 

 
4. That the Board Chair ensures reporting back to the Board on this matter at future meetings. 

 
BACKGROUND: 
Structure and governance of local public health in Ontario 

• The delegation of public health responsibility to the local level occurred nearly 200 years ago in Ontario, when 
the Legislature of Upper Canada passed an Act in 1883 allowing local municipalities to “establish Boards of 
Health to guard against the introduction of malignant, contagious and infectious disease in this province.”  
The proclamation of the Health Protection and Promotion Act (HPPA) in 1983 replaced the historical Public 
Health Act1.   
 

• In 1997, as part of the Services Improvement Act, the HPPA was revised, and Mandatory Health Programs and 
Services Guidelines were published.  These were replaced by the Ontario Public Health Standards (OPHS) in 
January 1, 2009.  The most recent comprehensive revision of the OPHS came into effect January 1, 2018.  
Subsequently, the OPHS has been updated in specific program areas, with the current version effective since 
June, 20211-2. 

 
• Over the past century, Ontario has transitioned from having 800 boards of health to the current state of 34 

local public health units1.  Within the past three decades, changes to Ontario’s local public health unit 
structure have included the following: 

o In 1998, a reduction of public health units from 42 to 37 with the six health departments in the 
boroughs of East York, Etobicoke, North York, Scarborough, York and the city of Toronto merging into 
the single entity of Toronto Public Health, which accompanied the amalgamation of the former 
Metropolitan Toronto into the City of Toronto 
 

o In 2005, a reduction from 37 to 36 health units following the recommendation of assessor Graham 
Scott to dissolve the Muskoka-Parry Sound Board of Health and merge the unit with two other health 
units (the then Simcoe County District Health Unit and then North Bay District Health Unit) to 
become the Simcoe Muskoka District Health Unit and the North Bay Parry Sound District Health Unit 

 
o In 2018, a reduction from 36 to 35 health units with the merging of Elgin-St. Thomas and Oxford 

County Public Health Units to form Southwestern Public Health  
 

o In 2020, a reduction from 35 to 34 health units with the merging of Huron County and Perth District 
Health Units to form Huron Perth Public Health 

 
o In 2023, Porcupine and Timiskaming Health Units publicly announced their intention to merge; 

should this be formalized, it would reduce Ontario’s public health units from 34 to 33 
 

• Currently, there are three types of governance models in Ontario’s local public health units3: 

Page 47 of 120



Briefing Note  Page 3 of 8 
 

1. Autonomous boards of health have administrative structures that are separate from that of the 
obligated municipality or municipalities (e.g. Algoma Public Health); board of health members 
include representatives of obligated municipalities, as well as provincial appointees 
 

2. Regional boards of health operate under the administration of a regional government, also 
known as an upper-tier municipality with lower tier municipalities within the regional boundaries 
(e.g. York region, Niagara region); the regional council functions as the board of health and there 
are no citizen representatives and no public appointees 

 
3. Single-tier/semi-autonomous boards of health operate in single-tier municipalities, where 

municipal councils serve as the board of health (e.g. Hamilton) or municipal council appoints 
members to a separate board of health but retains authority for budget and staffing approvals in 
a “semi-autonomous” structure (e.g. Toronto) 

 
 

• Following the experience of Severe Acute Respiratory Syndrome (SARS) in Ontario, the provincial government 
launched Operation Health Protection, a three-year plan to revitalize the public health system.  As part of the 
that work, the Capacity Review Committee undertook a review of the organization and capacity of local public 
health units.  In their 2006 report, “Revitalizing Ontario’s Public Health Capacity, the Capacity Review 
Committee 

o Identified 19 Ontario public health units and recommended their amalgamation for the purpose of 
“achieving critical mass and strengthening public health.”  Six of these public health units have since 
merged or announced intentions of merging.  Algoma Public Health was not among the health units 
recommended for amalgamation in this report4. 
 

o Recommended that the province work with, and if necessary, increase the unorganized territory 
grants and implement any additional strategies required to achieve sufficient critical capacity.  The 
committee viewed that consolidations among northern health units would result in huge geographic 
challenges that might outweigh the benefits and that different mechanisms should be sought to 
strengthen and achieve critical mass in northern health units4. 

 
o Recommended that public health units should be governed by autonomous, locally-based boards of 

health, whose primary focus is the delivery of public health programs and services, and whose 
members should consist of eight to fourteen members, with equal balance between municipal 
appointees and local citizen representatives appointed by the board under authority delegated from 
the province4. 

 
• In 2017, the report of the Minister of Health and Long-Term Care’s Expert Panel on Public Health, “Public 

Health within an Integrated Health System,” advised that, in order to achieve the objective of integration with 
the health system, the structure of local public health be reorganized into 14 regional public health entities, 
with boundaries that align with those of the local health integration networks (LHIN) at the time5.  This 
reorganization did not take place and the 14 LHINs were subsequently dissolved in 2019 and replaced by 5 
Ontario Health regions. 
 

• In the 2019 Ontario budget, changes were once again proposed for the public health sector, where the 35 
health units would be replaced by 10 regional public health entities and 10 new regional boards of health with 
one common governance model6.   

 

Page 48 of 120



Briefing Note  Page 4 of 8 
 

• Subsequently, in August 2023, with a global pandemic occurring in the interim, the provincial government 
announced that they would support a coordinated approach to voluntary mergers, with merger and business 
continuity costs funded over three years, and any savings to be reinvested into local public health operations.  
Criteria for the consideration of mergers have yet to be established, and at the time of writing, the province 
has yet to further engage and consult with the field on this matter.  Historical reports suggest that 
considerations for merging will likely include a “critical mass” population size, as well as capacity issues, such 
as longstanding Medical Officer of Health vacancies, challenges in recruiting and retaining staff with 
specialized skill sets, coverage gaps, and inadequate surge capabilities4. 
 

Funding of local public health in Ontario 
• The HPPA specifies that obligated municipalities of a health unit shall pay the expenses of the board of health 

and medical officer of health, whereas the Minister of Health may make grants for the purposes of the Act. 
Historically, provincial grants to Ontario boards of health have consisted of providing complete funding for 
programs designated as 100% provincially-funded and providing a percentage of the expenses of the board of 
health incurred to provide mandatory, cost-shared public health programs7. 
 

o In the 1990s, the province funded 75% of approved health unit budgets until 1998, when for one 
year, due to the Local Services Realignment process at the time, the province did not provide any 
grants to public health units for mandatory programs in municipally incorporated areas.  
  

o From 1999 to 2004, the province provided 50% of board of health approved public health unit costs. 
 

o Following the events of the Walkerton E. coli outbreak and SARS, and the subsequent reviews and 
reports, the provincial share for mandatory public health programs increased to 55% in 2005, 65% in 
2006, and 75% in 2007. 

 
o In 2020, the province shifted the cost-share formula to 70% provincial, 30% municipal, and 

incorporated nine previously 100% provincially funded programs into the general pool of mandatory 
programs that are cost-shared with municipalities.  These nine programs represented $2.2 million in 
100% provincial funding in APH’s 2019 budget, and have since been cost-shared with municipalities 
at the 70:30 ratio.  The programs were focused in the areas of diabetes prevention, food safety, safe 
water, harm reduction (i.e. local opioid response, overdose surveillance, naloxone distribution and 
training), oral health services for low-income children and youth, infectious disease control, needle 
exchange, nursing initiatives (i.e. Chief Nursing Officer, social determinants of health nurses, infection 
prevention and control nurses), and comprehensive tobacco control. 

 
o From 2020 to 2023, the province provided annual one-time mitigation funding to public health units 

to offset the increased public health program costs of municipalities as a result of the cost-sharing 
change.  For APH, provincial mitigation funding amounted to $1.04 million in 2020, and there has not 
been any increase to provincial mitigation funding from 2020 to 2023.   
 

o Of note, from 2019 to 2021, there has not been any provincial increases to public health base 
funding.  A 1% increase was provided to public health base funding in each of 2022 and 2023.  
According to the Bank of Canada, the average annual rate of inflation from 2019 to 2023 was 3.78%, 
and a basket of goods and services that cost $100 in 2019 would cost $116 in 2023 (a 16% increase in 
cost)11.  

 

Page 49 of 120



Briefing Note  Page 5 of 8 
 

o In August 2023, the Ministry of Health announced that provincial funding to local public health would 
be restored to the level provided under the previous cost share formula, effectively reincorporating 
provincial mitigation funding back into public health base funding.  Furthermore, the growth to base 
would be 1% for each of the next three calendar years (2024-2026), and the province would 
undertake a review of the ministry’s funding methodology for public health. 
 

Algoma Public Health and the local public health context in northeastern Ontario 
• Following the proposed structural changes and integration of local public health with the health system in 

2017, the five northeastern Ontario health units began exploration of how improved efficiencies may be 
achieved through closer collaboration and “functional mergers.”  In 2019, following the provincial 
announcement of public health regionalization, the northeastern Ontario health units refocused this work to 
consider how a regional public health entity might be structured, led, and governed, while being able to 
deliver the Ontario Public Health Standards efficiently and equitably across the region.  Recommendations 
from the northeastern health units were collated and submitted to the province in 2019.  Although 
subsequent consultations were halted due to the pandemic, the work of this previous collaboration remains 
available to be revisited8.   

 
• In 2023, Porcupine and Timiskaming Health Units announced that they would be proceeding toward a 

voluntary merger9.  The merging of these two health units were included in the recommendations of the 2006 
report of the Capacity Review Committee4. 

 
• In the past decade, APH has experienced both internal and external challenges as a public health unit.   

o Of note, in 2015, provincial assessor Graham Scott recommended that either the APH board be 
completely restructured, or that APH merge with its neighbouring health unit to form the Algoma-
Sudbury Public Health Unit with one board.  This was in response to considerable issues identified 
within senior leadership, including the theft of public funds and inappropriate hiring practices, and a 
passive board which the assessor deemed to have failed its governance expectations under the 
Ontario Public Health Standards10. 
 

o Considerable strengthening in governance and board practices has occurred since that time, with the 
maintenance of both governance and finance & audit subcommittees, optimization of board policies, 
implementation of strong financial controls, and an ongoing effort to maintain a diverse skillset 
within the membership of the board. 

 
o Since 2017, APH has been successful in recruiting and retaining a full-time Medical Officer of Health, 

and an Associate Medical Officer of Health, which has provided organizational stability in leadership, 
as well as strengthened capacity and appropriate coverage.  Similarly, notwithstanding routine 
challenges of recruitment in northern Ontario, APH has continued to be able to recruit and retain 
skilled staff with specialist skills, as well as maintain generalist capabilities across the workforce, such 
that APH can sustainably provide the 21 municipalities of Algoma’s large geography with an optimal 
breadth and depth of public health services.  

 
o Recently, with access to COVID-19 funding from the province, APH was able to mount a robust local 

pandemic response, which included surge capacity to meet intense local needs of surveillance, case, 
contact, and outbreak management, infection prevention and control, information and knowledge 
translation, as well as the coordination of a program of mass immunization with partners across all of 
Algoma’s municipalities and First Nation communities that resulted in nearly 85% of Algoma 
residents receiving two doses of the COVID-19 vaccine.  Feedback from internal and external 
evaluation surveys particularly highlight the success and usefulness of the APH local liaison model to 

Page 50 of 120



Briefing Note  Page 6 of 8 
 

directly support major societal sectors in Algoma; liaisons were APH staff – typically with prior 
experience working with partners in a specific sector – aligned as a primary contact to a set of 
community organizations, who provided local and provincial situational updates, supported the 
interpretation and application of local and provincial public health measures, and were directly 
available to coordinate response activities and engage in bidirectional communication.  The 
pandemic response is evidence of APH’s ability to perform the core public health function of 
emergency preparedness and response at the local level, and early evaluation results suggest that a 
high degree of local system integration was achieved in the course of APH’s pandemic response 
efforts. 

 
ASSESSMENT OF RISKS AND MITIGATION: 

• At this time, with respect to the review of the OPHS and the public health funding formula, there is not 
enough information available yet to identify defined risks to the organization and its ability to deliver 
public health services that improve health and health equity in Algoma.  As the processes of these 
reviews get under way, early engagement and dialogue with the province, alongside northern Ontario 
municipalities and First Nation partners where relevant, may help ensure the representation and 
consideration of the northern Ontario context. 
 

• With regards to the provincial incentivization of voluntary public health unit mergers, a previous rapid 
review and policy analysis has identified regionalization experiences and perspectives for local public 
health consideration in Ontario’s northern, rural and remote settings12.  If a voluntary merger is 
considered and pursued, the identified risks and mitigation approaches in this document should be 
revisited.  Further engagement and dialogue with the province and neighbouring health units will be 
helpful to discern what the risks may be of not pursuing a voluntary merger at this time. 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 
• Currently, with a business-as-usual trajectory, including maintenance of a 70:30 cost-share ratio, APH is 

projecting an estimated $1.5 million deficit in 2024.  The status quo in provincial base funding (i.e. base 
funding returned to 2020 levels), with the announced 1% growth to base funding in 2024, are insufficient to 
meet ongoing inflationary pressures. 
 

• Planning efforts are underway for 2024 and staff will be providing 2024 budget scenarios to the Finance and 
Audit Committee for review and further direction in October 2023. 

 
OPHS STANDARD: 
Public Health Accountability Framework: Good Governance and Management Practices Domain 
Requirement 14.  The board of health shall provide governance direction to the administration and ensure that the 
board of health remains informed about the activities of the organization on the following: 

a) Delivery of programs and services; 
b) Organizational effectiveness through evaluation of the organization and strategic planning; 
c) Stakeholder relations and partnership building; 
d) Research and evaluation; 
e) Compliance with all applicable legislation and regulations; 
f) Workforce issues, including recruitment of medical officer of health and any other senior executives; 
g) Financial management, including procurement policies and practices; and 
h) Risk management 

 
STRATEGIC DIRECTIONS: 
1. Improve the impact and effectiveness of Algoma Public Health programs. 

Page 51 of 120



Briefing Note  Page 7 of 8 
 

• Meaningfully engage clients, partners, and communities based on shared goals and accountabilities. 
 
2. Grow and celebrate an organizational culture of learning, innovation, and continuous improvement. 

• Engage staff and external partners in the evolution of our public health role in Algoma communities. 
 
CONTACT: 
Dr. Jennifer Loo, Medical Officer of Health & CEO 
 
REFERENCES: 
Please note: referenced documents below may be accessed by board members online either directly through 
embedded hyperlinks or through the Board Effects library. 
 

1. Association of local public health agencies (alPHa).  Milestones and History: history of public health units in 
Ontario.  Accessed September 18, 2023 from https://www.alphaweb.org/page/milestones.   

2. Ontario.  Ministry of Health.  Ontario public health standards: requirements for programs, services and 
accountability.  Toronto, ON: Queen’s Printer for Ontario; 2021.  Available from: 
https://www.health.gov.on.ca/en/pro/programs/publichealth/oph_standards/docs/protocols_guidelines/On
tario_Public_Health_Standards_2021.pdf.  

3. Association of local public health agencies (alPHa).  2022 Orientation manual for boards of health.  Toronto 
ON, 2022.  Available from: https://cdn.ymaws.com/www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/E75B6EEF-60B9-
482F-83D6-69AEDE790192/BOH_orientation_manual_2022_Nov_15_FINAL.pdf.  

4. Tamblyn S, Hyndman B; Capacity Review Committee. Revitalizing Ontario’s public health capacity: the final 
report of the Capacity Review Committee [Internet]. Toronto, ON: Queen’s Printer for Ontario; 2006. 
Available from: https://collections.ola.org/mon/14000/259219.pdf. 

5. Minister’s Expert Panel on Public Health. Public health within an integrated health system: report of the 
Minister's Expert Panel on Public Health [Internet]. Toronto, ON: Queen’s Printer for Ontario; 2017. Available 
from: https://collections.ola.org/mon/31008/341131.pdf.  

6. Fideli V; Ontario.  Ministry of Finance.  2019 Ontario Budget: Protecting What Matters Most.  Toronto, ON: 
Queen’s Printer for Ontario; 2019.  Available from: https://budget.ontario.ca/2019/chapter-1c.html#s-8.  

7. Mowat DL; Funding Review Working Group. Public health funding model for mandatory programs: the final 
report of the funding review working group [Internet]. Toronto, ON: Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care; 
2013. Available from: https://collections.ola.org/mon/29009/331815.pdf.   

8. Medical Officers of Health of Northeastern Ontario.  Transforming public health for the people of 
northeastern Ontario: a submission to the Government of Ontario, Deputy Minister and Chief Medical Officer 
of Health.  July 2019.   

9. Porcupine Health Unit.  Porcupine and Timiskaming Health Units moving towards a voluntary merger.  August 
30, 2023.  Available from: https://www.porcupinehu.on.ca/en/audiences/news-
media/mediareleases/voluntary-merger-phu-and-thu/.  

10. Scott, GWS.  Assessors report on Algoma Public Health Unit.  Pursuant to Section 82(3) Health Protection and 
Promotion Act.  April 24, 2015. 

11. Bank of Canada.  Inflation Calculator.  Accessed September 20, 2023, from: 
https://www.bankofcanada.ca/rates/related/inflation-calculator/.  

12. Algoma Public Health. Regionalization experiences and perspectives for local public health consideration in 
Ontario’s northern, rural and remote settings: a rapid review and descriptive policy analysis. Sault Ste. Marie: 
Algoma Public Health; 2019. 

 

 
 

Page 52 of 120

https://www.alphaweb.org/page/milestones
https://www.health.gov.on.ca/en/pro/programs/publichealth/oph_standards/docs/protocols_guidelines/Ontario_Public_Health_Standards_2021.pdf
https://www.health.gov.on.ca/en/pro/programs/publichealth/oph_standards/docs/protocols_guidelines/Ontario_Public_Health_Standards_2021.pdf
https://cdn.ymaws.com/www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/E75B6EEF-60B9-482F-83D6-69AEDE790192/BOH_orientation_manual_2022_Nov_15_FINAL.pdf
https://cdn.ymaws.com/www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/E75B6EEF-60B9-482F-83D6-69AEDE790192/BOH_orientation_manual_2022_Nov_15_FINAL.pdf
https://collections.ola.org/mon/14000/259219.pdf
https://collections.ola.org/mon/31008/341131.pdf
https://budget.ontario.ca/2019/chapter-1c.html#s-8
https://collections.ola.org/mon/29009/331815.pdf
https://www.porcupinehu.on.ca/en/audiences/news-media/mediareleases/voluntary-merger-phu-and-thu/
https://www.porcupinehu.on.ca/en/audiences/news-media/mediareleases/voluntary-merger-phu-and-thu/
https://www.bankofcanada.ca/rates/related/inflation-calculator/


Ministry of Health | Office of Chief Medical Officer of Health, Public Health 

Strengthening Public 
Health

August 2023

Page 53 of 120



Context

There are long-standing challenges within the public health sector in Ontario related to capacity, 
stability and sustainability (along with implications for inequitable health outcomes for Ontarians) 
that have been identified through multiple reports over the past 20 years.

• Since the SARS pandemic in 2003, there have been a series of reports that have 
consistently called for strengthening public health to address critical challenges 
such as a lack of capacity and critical mass, structural governance challenges 
and skills gaps in boards of health, misalignment of public health with other 
health and social services, as well as challenges with the public health 
workforce, including with recruitment, retention and leadership.

• The COVID-19 pandemic reinforced the critical importance of a robust public 
health sector. Key lessons from the pandemic included: the importance of Local 
Public Health Agencies (LPHAs, often referred to as PHUs) having sufficient 
capacity to respond in a crisis, the benefit of collaboration across the health 
care system, the need for stability and sustainability to allow for LPHAs to plan 
for and be able to respond to ongoing and future crises and challenges.

2Page 54 of 120



To optimize capacity, stability and sustainability in public health and deliver more equitable                  
health outcomes for Ontarians:

1. Clarified and refined public health roles and responsibilities that result in: 
o Stronger connections to and relationships with key health system stakeholders (e.g., 

OHTs, primary care).
o Core public health functions being performed either locally, regionally, or provincially, 

informed by a prioritization framework.
o Reduced variability in prioritization and decision-making and public communications 

(especially during crises) while remaining responsive to local needs.

2. A system that has fewer LPHAs but with greater capacity to deliver core public health services 
and better alignment with broader health system structures.

3. Stability for the sector and sustainability in funding for the longer term to support program 
planning and consistent, more equitable program and service delivery.

4. Improved frontline programs and services to Ontarians at the local level.

Goal

What we want to achieve

Desired
Outcomes

3Page 55 of 120



Strategy

The Ministry of Health is proceeding with a three-pronged, sector-driven strategy to optimize 
capacity, stability, and sustainability in public health and deliver more 

equitable health outcomes for Ontarians

1. Roles and 
responsibilities

2. Voluntary mergers

3. Funding

Strengthening Public Health

4Page 56 of 120



#1 | Roles and responsibilities

Clarify and strengthen the role of LPHAs by refining, refocusing and re-leveling roles and 
responsibilities

• Conduct a routine, sector-driven review of the Ontario Public Health 
Standards (OPHS), against a prioritization framework.

• Work with partners to identify roles and responsibilities that can be refined or 
stopped, and/or ‘re-leveled’ to a regional or provincial level.

• Implement the full revised OPHS beginning in January 1, 2025.

5Page 57 of 120



#2 | Voluntary Mergers

Optimize capacity by encouraging mergers between LPHAs through a time-limited voluntary, 
sector-driven process

• Re-engage with LPHAs that have identified interest in mergers and work with 
sector partners to identify other merger candidates. 

• Leverage sector relationships (e.g., alPHa, AMO) to co-develop a voluntary
merger approach, including objectives, parameters, and accountability 
mechanisms with time-limited funding supports to facilitate the merger process. 

• Mergers to take effect January 1, 2025.

6Page 58 of 120



#3 | Funding

Provide 3-year funding to LPHAs that addresses the urgent need for stabilization while change 
processes are underway, support voluntary mergers by providing one-time transition and stabilization 

costs; and review longer-term base funding needs

• Restore provincial base funding to the level provided under the 2020 cost-
share formula ($46.81M), effective January 1,  2024.

• Provide growth base funding of 1% for each of the next 3 calendar years (2024 –
2026).

• Establish a dedicated, three-year Merger Support Fund to support change.

• Undertake a review of the ministry’s funding methodology for public health.

7Page 59 of 120



Focus and 
‘re-level’ 
LPHA roles & 
responsibilities

Jan 1, 2024: Begin to 
Implement “quick win” 

changes

Engage sector 
partners

8

Conduct review of “quick win” roles 
to be refined

20252024Aug-Dec 2023

Focused OPHS review: 
Initial scoping  

Jan 1, 2025: Implement 
revised OPHS

Voluntary 
Mergers

Engage key partners
Design time-limited 
process and related 

parameters

Jan 1, 2024: Launch 
process

Fall: Release full 
revised Standards, 

to align 
implementation 
with municipal 
planning cycle

Summer: 
Approvals

Spring: 
Sector 

engagement

Funding

Aug 2023: Announce short-term 
stabilization funding at 2023 

AMO Conference, along with the 
collaborative approach to 

strengthening PH over the next 3 
years

Jan 1, 2024: Implement 
short-term stabilization 

funding

Allocate funding required to support transition and change initiatives ($47M to base, 1% growth and Merger Support 
Funding over 3 years); Conduct review of provincial base funding to LPHAs 

Initiate voluntary mergers by 
Jan 1, 2025

Re-engage with 
proposals previously 

submitted in 2021/22

Implement re-levelled roles and responsibilities

2026: Implement 
new funding 

approach

Work with approved candidates to support merger processes, including legislative and/or regulatory 
amendmentsIdentify and approve merger candidates

Spring 2025: 
Communicate new 
funding approach

Implementation Timeline 

8Page 60 of 120



• We will be working closely with our partners to support design and implementation of this 
strategy. Your expertise and insights will be invaluable as we move through this process.

• Initial ministry engagement with sector partners, including AMO, alPHa, MOHs & CEOs, 
Business Administrators, etc., will occur in late August / early September.

• We will follow up on next steps regarding how we will collectively work together in the 
coming months once we have finished these consultations.

We are committed to working in partnership to maximize opportunities for 
local improvement and system impact

Working together on next steps

9Page 61 of 120



 www.algomapublichealth.com 

Blind River 
P.O. Box 194 
9B Lawton Street 
Blind River, ON  P0R 1B0 
Tel: 705-356-2551 
TF:  1 (888) 356-2551 
Fax: 705-356-2494 

Elliot Lake 
ELNOS Building 
302-31 Nova Scotia Walk
Elliot Lake, ON  P5A 1Y9
Tel: 705-848-2314
TF: 1 (877) 748-2314
Fax: 705-848-1911

Sault Ste. Marie 
294 Willow Avenue 
Sault Ste. Marie, ON  P6B 0A9 
Tel: 705-942-4646 
TF: 1 (866) 892-0172 
Fax:  705-759-1534 

Wawa 
18 Ganley Street 
Wawa, ON  P0S 1K0 
Tel: 705-856-7208 
TF: 1 (888) 211-8074 
Fax: 705-856-1752 

June 8, 2023 

Via Email 

Honourable Jean -Yves Duclos 
Minister of Health, Canada 
House of Commons 
Ottawa, ON K1A 0A6 
Jean-yves.duclos@parl.gc.ca 

Dear Honourable Minister Duclos: 

Re: Support for Bill S-254, an Act to amend the Food and Drug Act (warning labels on alcoholic 
beverages) 

On April 26, 2023, the Board of Health for Algoma Public Health (APH), the local public health agency 
for the District of Algoma in Ontario, received information on alcohol-related harms and the newly 
released Canada’s Guidance on Alcohol and Health, which outlines the current evidence linking 
alcohol to many health conditions and aims to help people make informed decisions about their 
alcohol consumption.  At this time, a motion was passed to endorse Bill S-254 – An Act to Amend the 
Food and Drug Act (Warning Labels on Alcoholic Beverages), which calls on the federal government of 
Canada to implement alcohol warning labels.(1) 

The Board of Health for Algoma Public Health is asking the federal government to express support for 
Bill S-254, by implementing alcohol warning labels that: 
1. Indicate the volume that constitutes a standard drink; and
2. Detail the number of standard drinks in the beverage container; and
3. Display health messages regarding the relationship between the number of standard drinks
consumed and health outcomes, including the risk of cancer.

More than 75% of Canadians report consuming alcohol, and only 28% of Canadians are aware of the 
linkage between alcohol and cancer.(2)  When asked if warning labels on alcoholic beverages would 
change behaviour, two-thirds of those surveyed said they would decrease their consumption with 
this knowledge.(2) In Algoma, over 1 in 4 residents drink heavily and breast and colorectal cancers are 
more frequently diagnosed, compared to Ontario.(3)  APH’s Board of Health is committed to 
influencing the development and implementation of healthy policies and programs related to alcohol 
and other drugs, with a goal of reducing harms associated with substance use. 

Page 62 of 120

mailto:Jean-yves.duclos@parl.gc.ca


Bill S-254 aligns with the recent call to action in Canada’s Guidance on Alcohol and Health, regarding  
mandatory labelling on alcoholic beverages, including the number of standard drinks in a container, 
risk levels from Canada’s Guidance on Alcohol and Health, and health warnings.(1) In Canada, tobacco 
and cannabis products, two other legally regulated substances, are already subject to mandatory 
warning labels under the Tobacco and Vaping Products and Cannabis Acts, which have been found to 
be among the most direct and prominent means of communicating with smokers.(4) In the same way 
that packaging and health warnings on tobacco products were used as part of a broader public health 
approach to reducing tobacco-related harms, labels on alcoholic beverages can help people make 
informed choices about their alcohol consumption, and raise awareness of alcohol-related harms. 

We ask for your support of Bill S-254 and the implementation of federally mandated labels on all 
alcohol containers sold in Canada, to better inform Canadians about the health risks of alcohol.  This 
is especially important given that the majority of Canadians are unaware that alcohol is classified by 
the World Health Organization (WHO) as a Class 1 carcinogen and is a cause of 7 different types of 
cancer, including breast and colon.(5) 

 Thank you for your consideration in advocating for improved health of Canadians. 

Sally Hagman 
Chair, Board of Health, 

cc:  Dr. J. Loo, Medical Officer of Health and CEO for Algoma Public Health 
The Honorable Senator Patrick Brazeau 
Local Councils  
Local MPs  
The Association of Local Public Health Agencies 
Ontario Boards of Health 

Page 63 of 120



From: Hamilton, Amanda (HC/SC) <amanda.hamilton@hc-sc.gc.ca> On Behalf Of CSD DGO / BDG
DSC (HC/SC)
Sent: Monday, August 14, 2023 10:52 AM
To: Tania Caputo <TCaputo@algomapublichealth.com>
Subject: In response to your correspondence of June 8, 2023

Dear Sally Hagman:

Thank you for your correspondence of June 8, 2023, addressed to the Honourable
Jean-Yves Duclos, Former Minister of Health, regarding the Algoma Public Health
Board’s support for Bill S-254, an Act to amend the Food and Drug Act (warning
labels on alcoholic beverages). I have been asked to reply to you directly and regret
the delay in responding.

Health Canada recognizes that alcohol use presents a serious public health and
safety issue that affects individuals and communities across Canada. Our efforts to
address alcohol harms are guided by the Canadian Drugs and Substances Strategy,
which takes a comprehensive, collaborative, compassionate, and evidence-based
approach to reduce the harms associated with substance use in Canada.

The Government of Canada supports research to better inform Canadians of the
various harms associated with alcohol use, and advance evidence-based policy with
the aim of reducing alcohol-related harms. Public education and awareness building
are some of the best tools available to support Canadians in making informed
decisions about alcohol consumption.

To that end, Health Canada provided $1.5 million to the Canadian Centre on
Substance Use and Addiction (CCSA) through the Substance Use and Addictions
Program for the update of Canada’s Guidance on Alcohol and Health (CGAH),
formerly known as Canada’s Low-Risk Alcohol Drinking Guidelines. Released on
January 17, 2023, the CGAH provides evidence-based information on the risks and
harms associated with consuming alcohol. The final report contains policy
recommendations such as strengthening regulations on alcohol advertising and
marketing, increasing restrictions on the physical availability of alcohol, adopting
minimum prices for alcohol, and the mandatory labelling of alcoholic beverages.

Page 64 of 120

https://www.canada.ca/en/health-canada/services/substance-use/canadian-drugs-substances-strategy.html
https://ccsa.ca/canadas-guidance-alcohol-and-health


Health Canada has studied the recommendations of the CCSA and is exploring
opportunities to engage and hear from Canadians on knowledge translation and the
best way to communicate the risks of alcohol consumption. This is important to
ensure that the unique circumstances of people with diverse backgrounds and
personal experiences are considered as part of addressing alcohol and substance
use harms.

Thank you for reaching out to share your perspective. Addressing alcohol-related
harms is a complex issue and a shared responsibility between federal, provincial,
territorial, and municipal governments. Any future federal approach will be guided by
evidence-based research, best practices, and the advice and recommendations of
experts and those with lived and living experience.

Sincerely,

Jennifer Saxe
Jennifer Saxe
Director General
Controlled Substances Directorate
Health Canada

Page 65 of 120



  

 
June 28, 2023 
 
VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL 
 
 
The Honourable Doug Ford 
Premier of Ontario 
Legislative Building 
Queen's Park 
Toronto ON M7A 1A1 
 
Dear Premier Ford: 

 
Re: Bill 103, Smoke-Free Ontario Amendment Act (Vaping is not for 

Kids), 2023 
 
Teen vaping has increased steadily across the nation and within Sudbury and 
districts since 2017. There are significant health risks associated with vaping 
and nicotine use including lung damage, changes to the brain, dependence or 
addiction, difficulty learning, and increased anxiety and stress. Furthermore, 
there is an increased risk for future tobacco cigarette use among youth who 
vape (Ontario Agency for Health Protection and Promotion, 2018).  
 
Bill 103 aims to prevent youth from starting to vape and seeks to decrease 
vaping rates through a number of important actions, including prohibiting the 
promotion of vapour products, and raising the minimum age for purchasing 
vapour products.  
 
At its meeting on June 15, 2023, the Board of Health carried the following 
resolution #35-23: 

 

WHEREAS vaping poses substantial health risks linked to the 
development of chronic illness, addiction, polysubstance use, as well as 
risks for injury and death; and 

 

WHEREAS vaping rates among youth have grown with 30.6% of Grade 
7 to 12 students in Northern Ontario reporting having used electronic 
cigarettes(vaping) in 2019, compared with 22.7% for the province; and 

 
WHEREAS Board of Health motion 48-19 noted the Board’s 
longstanding history of proactive and effective action to prevent tobacco 
and emerging product use and urged the adoption of a comprehensive  
tobacco and e-cigarette strategy; and 

Page 66 of 120

https://www.phsd.ca/about/board-health/motions-approved-sudbury-district-board-health/e-cigarette-and-aerosolized-product-prevention-and-cessation-motion-48-19/


The Honourable Doug Ford 
June 28, 2023 
Page 2 

 

WHEREAS Bill 103 – Smoke-Free Ontario Amendment Act (Vaping is not for 
Kids), 2023 aims to prevent youth from initiating vaping and decrease the current 
usage of vaping products by targeting legislation changes, including banning the 
retail of flavoured vaping products, increasing minimum purchasing age to 21, 
and prohibiting the promotion of vapor products; 

 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Board of Health for Public Health 
Sudbury & Districts endorse Bill 103 - Smoke Free Ontario Amendment Act 
(Vaping is not for Kids), 2023; and 

 

FURTHER THAT this endorsement be shared with relevant stakeholders.   
 
Vaping among youth is a complex public health issue that requires immediate action. 
This suggests that a single intervention or approach will be insufficient to address the 
high rates of vaping among youth. At Public Health Sudbury & Districts, our efforts in 
addressing youth vaping involve a multi-faceted, comprehensive, upstream, and 
strengths-based approach that supports positive youth development. Strategies are 
community and school-driven and influence risk and protective factors associated with 
vaping. The strategies include education, policy development, prevention programs, 
research, collaboration, and enforcement activities, fostering the development of 
supportive social and physical environments in which youth can thrive and flourish. 
Yet, this is just one piece in a comprehensive approach addressing youth vaping. 
 
The legislative solutions of Bill 103 are designed to make vaping less available and 
desirable for youth to address the increase in rates of vaping and to prevent the 
associated harms of vaping. 
 
We thank you for your attention to this important health promotion initiative, and we 
continue to look forward to opportunities to work together to promote and protect the 
health for everyone. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
 
Penny Sutcliffe, MD, MHSc, FRCPC 
Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive Officer 
 
cc: France Gélinas, Member of Provincial Parliament, Nickel Belt 

Dr. Kieran Moore, Chief Medical Officer of Health 
Honourable Sylvia Jones, Deputy Premier and Minister of Health 
Honourable Michael Parsa, Minister of Children, Community and Social Services 
Honourable Steve Clark, Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing 
All Ontario boards of Health 
Association of Local Public Health Agencies 

Page 67 of 120

https://www.ola.org/en/legislative-business/bills/parliament-43/session-1/bill-103
https://www.ola.org/en/legislative-business/bills/parliament-43/session-1/bill-103


 
 
 

 

                  www.algomapublichealth.com 
 

Blind River 
P.O. Box 194 
9B Lawton Street 
Blind River, ON  P0R 1B0 
Tel: 705-356-2551 
TF:  1 (888) 356-2551 
Fax: 705-356-2494 

Elliot Lake 
ELNOS Building 
302-31 Nova Scotia Walk 
Elliot Lake, ON  P5A 1Y9 
Tel: 705-848-2314 
TF: 1 (877) 748-2314 
Fax: 705-848-1911 
 

Sault Ste. Marie 
294 Willow Avenue 
Sault Ste. Marie, ON  P6B 0A9 
Tel: 705-942-4646 
TF: 1 (866) 892-0172 
Fax:  705-759-1534 
 

Wawa 
18 Ganley Street 
Wawa, ON  P0S 1K0 
Tel: 705-856-7208 
TF: 1 (888) 211-8074 
Fax: 705-856-1752 

 

 

 
July 4, 2023 

 
The Honourable Doug Ford  
Premier of Ontario  
Delivered via email: premier@ontario.ca 
  
The Honourable Sylvia Jones  
Deputy Premier  
Minister of Health  
Delivered via email: sylvia.jones@pc.ola.org 
  
The Honourable Michael Parsa  
Minister of Children, Community and Social Services  
Delivered via email: michael.parsaco@pc.ola.org 
 

Dear Premier Ford, Deputy Premier and Minister Jones, and Minister Parsa: 

Re: Income-based policy interventions to effectively reduce household food insecurity (HFI) 
 
On June 28, 2023, the Board of Health for Algoma Public Health (APH) passed a resolution endorsing 
income-based policy interventions to effectively reduce household food insecurity (HFI), which is an 
urgent public health problem that imposes serious consequences to the health and well-being of 
Ontarians.  

HFI is inadequate or insecure access to food due to household financial constraints.(1, 2) It is a sign of 
poverty, rooted in a lack of adequate and stable income to make ends meet. In 2022, more than 2.8 
million Ontarians were food insecure, and this will only get worse with recent sky-rocketing 
inflation.(3)  

Locally, APH monitors food affordability as required by the Ontario Public Health Standards. Our local 
data shows that low-income households, especially those receiving Ontario Works (OW) and Ontario 
Disability Support Program (ODSP), struggle to afford basic costs of living and will be increasingly 
vulnerable as food prices continue to rise.(4) 

Not being able to afford adequate food has profound adverse effects on people’s physical and mental 
health and their ability to lead productive lives. This creates a heavy burden on the health care 
system with adults living in severely food insecure households incurring 121% higher health care 
costs compared to food secure households.(5) Effective income policies to reduce food insecurity 
could offset considerable public expenditures on health care and improve overall health. 

Page 68 of 120

mailto:premier@ontario.ca
mailto:sylvia.jones@pc.ola.org
mailto:michael.parsaco@pc.ola.org


Food charity is NOT a solution to the problem. Food banks may provide temporary food relief but do 
not address the root causes. Only about one-quarter of households experiencing food insecurity go to 
food banks and for those who do use them, food insecurity does not go away.(2) 

We urge the province to collaborate across sectors to implement income-based policies that 
effectively reduce food insecurity, such as(1, 2, 5) 

• increasing minimum wage to a rate that better reflects costs of living, such as a living wage,  
• raising social assistance to reflect costs of living,  
• indexing Ontario Works to inflation, and  
• reducing income tax rates for the lowest income households. 

Such income policies preserve dignity, address the root cause of the problem, give choice of which 
foods to buy, and ensure the basic right to food.  

Sincerely, 

 

Sally Hagman 
Chair, Board of Health,  
 
 
cc: Dr. J. Loo, Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive Officer for Algoma Public Health 

Local Councils  
Local MPs  
The Association of Local Public Health Agencies  
Ontario Boards of Health 
 
 
 
 
 

References: 
1. Tarasuk V, Li T, Fafard St-Germain A-A. Household food insecurity in Canada, 2021. 2016. 

htps://proof.utoronto.ca/wp-content/uploads/2022/08/Household-Food-Insecurity-in-Canada-
2021-PROOF.pdf 

2. ODPH Posi�on Statement on Responses to Food Insecurity: Ontario Die��ans in Public Health. 
2023. Available from: htps://www.odph.ca/odph-posi�on-statement-on-responses-to-food-
insecurity-1. 

3. New data on household food insecurity in 2022. PROOF, 2023.htps://proof.utoronto.ca/ 
4. Food affordability in Algoma infographic. 2023. 
5. alPHa Resolu�ons- Determinants of health.  Resolu�on A05-18, Adequate Nutri�on for works and 

Ontario Disability Support Program Par�cipants and Low Wage Earners; Resolu�on A15- 4, Public 
Health Support for a Basic Income Guarantee; Resolu�on A18-2, Public Health Support for a 
Minimum Wage that is a Living Wage. Associa�on of Local Public Health Agencies, 
2009.htps://www.alphaweb.org/page/Resolu�ons_SDOH 

 

Page 69 of 120

https://www.odph.ca/odph-position-statement-on-responses-to-food-insecurity-1
https://www.odph.ca/odph-position-statement-on-responses-to-food-insecurity-1
https://proof.utoronto.ca/
https://www.alphaweb.org/page/Resolutions_SDOH


 

Premier of Ontario 
Premier ministre 
de l’Ontario 
 

Legis lat ive Bui lding  
Queen’s  Park 

Toronto,  Ontar io 
M7A 1A1 

Édi f ice de l ’Assemblée légis lat ive 
Queen’s  Park 

Toronto (Ontar io)  
M7A 1A1 

 
 

September 20, 2023 
 
Ms. Sally Hagman 
Chair, Board of Health 
Algoma Public Health 
tcaputo@algomapublichealth.com 
 
Dear Ms. Hagman:  
 
Thank you for writing and sharing your views about food insecurity. I appreciate the 
opportunity to read your comments and get a better understanding of your 
perspective. 
  
The people of Ontario have put their trust in me to get the job done — I do not take 
that trust for granted. Our government will fulfill its promises and continue working for 
Ontarians every single day. 
  
I note that  you’ve shared your email with the Honourable Michael Parsa, Minister of 
Children, Community and Social Services, and the Honourable Sylvia Jones, Minister of 
Health. I trust that they will carefully consider your views.  
  
Your input is important. You can be sure our government will consider it when 
developing policies and deciding how to address the various challenges we face today. 
It’s with your help and through this collaborative spirit we will build a brighter future 
for Ontario. 
  
Thanks again for reaching out. 
 

 
 
Doug Ford 
Premier of Ontario 
 
C:   The Honourable Michael Parsa 
      The Honourable Sylvia Jones  

Page 70 of 120



Page 71 of 120



Page 72 of 120



Page 73 of 120



Page 74 of 120



Page 75 of 120



Page 76 of 120



Page 77 of 120



Page 78 of 120



Page 79 of 120



Page 80 of 120



Page 81 of 120



Page 82 of 120



Page 83 of 120



Page 84 of 120



Page 85 of 120



Page 86 of 120



 

 
August 1, 2023 

 
Honourable Minister David Piccini  
Minister of Environment, Conserva�on and Parks  
5th Floor, 777 Bay Street         Sent Via E-mail 
Ministry of Environment, Conserva�on and Parks  
Toronto, Ontario M7A 2J3         
 
Subject: Request for Air Quality Monitoring Sta�on in the Timiskaming Health Unit region 
 
We are wri�ng to request the installa�on of a tradi�onal Na�onal Air Pollu�on Surveillance (NAPS) air 
quality monitoring sta�on within the Timiskaming Health Unit catchment area. The recent smoke from 
Quebec, Ontario and western Canada wildfires has iden�fied that there is a significant gap in monitoring 
sta�ons in northern Ontario. This gap in air monitoring and subsequent lack of access to the provincial 
Air Quality Health Index (AQHI) measurement tool makes it very challenging for agencies and community 
members to make informed decisions to mi�gate nega�ve health outcomes during poor air quality 
events.  
 
The implementa�on of a NAPs air monitoring sta�on is crucial to ensure that accurate air quality 
monitoring data is available to best protect our communi�es during poor air quality events due to forest 
fire smoke. The implementa�on of a NAPS air monitor will provide local community partners with 
accurate data to increase public awareness and knowledge regarding air quality and its impact on health. 
Addi�onally, a NAPs air monitor will enable residents, especially those who are higher risk or caring for 
those who are higher risk such as children, elderly, and individuals with pre-exis�ng cardiac and 
respiratory condi�ons, to make informed decisions during poor air quality events.  
 
As the impacts from climate change con�nue to rise, the frequency, extent, �ming, and dura�on of the 
forest fire season is expected to substan�ally increase1, further heightening the urgency for effec�ve air 
quality monitoring in northern Ontario. Monitoring air quality will improve our understanding of the 
complex interac�ons between climate change, forest fire smoke and air pollu�on across the Timiskaming 
Health Unit region and support the development of targeted strategies to address these interconnected 
issues. 
 
Please consider this request for the �mely installa�on of a NAPS air quality monitoring sta�on in the 
Timiskaming Health Unit area. Access to air quality monitoring data will also enable Timiskaming Health 
Unit to fulfill obliga�ons under the Ontario Public Health Standards (OPHS) to protect the health and 
well-being of our local communi�es. Furthermore, local air monitoring technology will enhance local 
public health capacity to mi�gate environmental health risks2 such as adverse popula�on health 
outcomes resul�ng from poor air quality.  

 

 

Page 87 of 120



Air monitoring technology will also ensure that our residents will have access to accurate and real �me 
air quality data that will empower our communi�es to make informed decisions, reduce exposure to 
pollutants and improve overall health outcomes.  
 
Thank you for your aten�on to this mater. We look forward to your posi�ve response and discussing 
the next steps in implemen�ng air quality monitoring sta�ons in the Timiskaming Health Unit region. 
 
References:  

1. Douglas, A.G. and Pearson, D. (2022). Ontario; Chapter 4 in Canada in a Changing Climate: 
Regional Perspec�ves Report, (ed.) F.J. Warren, N. Lulham, D.L. Dupuis and D.S. Lemmen; 
Government of Canada, Otawa, Ontario. 

2. Ontario Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care. Healthy Environments and Climate Change 
Guideline, 2018. Retrieved from: 
htps://www.health.gov.on.ca/en/pro/programs/publichealth/oph_standards/docs/protocols_g
uidelines/Healthy_Environments_and_Climate_Change_Guideline_2018_en.pdf 

 
Yours sincerely,  

 

 

Stacy Wight       Dr. Glenn Corneil 
Board of Health Chair      Ac�ng Medical Officer of Health/CEO 
 

Copy: Honourable Doug Ford, Premier of Ontario  
Honourable Sylvia Jones, Deputy Premier of Ontario, Minister of Health  
Honourable Steven Guibeault, Minister of Environment and Climate Change  
Bernard Derible, Parliamentary Deputy Minister, Emergency Management, Treasury Board 
Secretariat Commissioner of Emergency Management  
Honourable John Vanthof, Member of Provincial Parliament Timiskaming - Cochrane  
Honourable Charlie Angus, Member of Parliament Timmins  
Honourable Jean-Yves Duclos, Member of Parliament, Minister of Health  
Dr. Kieran Moore, Chief Medical Officer of Health  
Loreta Ryan, Execu�ve Director, Associa�on of Local Health Agencies (alPHa)  
All Ontario Boards of Health  
All Member Municipali�es of the Temiskaming Health Unit 

Page 88 of 120

https://www.health.gov.on.ca/en/pro/programs/publichealth/oph_standards/docs/protocols_guidelines/Healthy_Environments_and_Climate_Change_Guideline_2018_en.pdf
https://www.health.gov.on.ca/en/pro/programs/publichealth/oph_standards/docs/protocols_guidelines/Healthy_Environments_and_Climate_Change_Guideline_2018_en.pdf


August 2, 2023 

Attention: 

The Honourable, Doug Ford, Premier of Ontario 

The Honourable Sylvia Jones, Deputy Premier and Minister of Health of Ontario 

City of London Council 

County of Middlesex Council 

Teresa Armstrong, Member of Provincial Parliament for London Fanshawe 

Terence Kernaghan, Member of Provincial Parliament for London North Centre 

Peggy Sattler, Member of Provincial Parliament for London West 

Rob Flack, Member of Provincial Parliament for Elgin-Middlesex-London 

Monte McNaughton, Member of Provincial Parliament for Lambton-Kent-Middlesex 

RE: Middlesex-London Health Unit 2024 Budget 

Dear Premier, Honourable Ministers, Members of Provincial Parliament, City of London Council, and County of Middlesex Council, 

The Middlesex-London Health Unit (MLHU) is grateful to the provincial government for its continued commitment to keeping the 

health and safety of Ontarians a top priority, with steadfast financial support for the Health Unit throughout the pandemic. Public health 

provides a critical foundation for the broader public healthcare system, during pandemics and beyond, through the provision of efficient 

and effective interventions that keep Ontarians out of emergency departments and hospital beds. Within its mission to protect and 

promote the health of people in Middlesex-London, the team at the MLHU helps to prevent the spread of infectious diseases, prevent 

illnesses associated with environmental exposures, promote healthy growth and development for babies, children, and youth (including 

mental health), prevent injuries and chronic diseases, and ensure system readiness for public health emergencies. Investing in public 

health is therefore a critical long-term, sustainable approach to building a strong healthcare system. 

The MLHU Board of Health wants to ensure the province was aware of the significant funding shortfall facing the MLHU in 2024. The 

MLHU anticipates funding reductions in 2024 with the end of the School Focused Nurses Initiative and COVID-19 Extraordinary 

Expense Funding. The proposed shift of Mitigation Funding to municipal partners introduces pressures beyond the funding increases 

required to keep pace with inflation, currently forecasted at 3.9% for 2024. Further, the rapidly increasing population creates greater 

need; between 2016 and 2021 the population of Middlesex-London grew by 10%.   

Without adequate funding, it is anticipated that it will not be possible for the MLHU to execute substantial components of the Ontario 

Public Health Standards in 2024. One recent example is the MLHU Strathroy Dental clinic, recently opened in June 2023, with capital 

funds from the Ontario Seniors’ Dental Care Program to support low-income seniors and low-income children 17 and under. This is a 

vital program in Middlesex County and has a large waitlist of clients interested in seeking dental care. To date, operational funding has 

not been provided for this clinic, adding to the list of significant financial pressures facing the MLHU in 2024.  

The MLHU shares the concerns of its public health colleagues from across Ontario regarding our collective ability to meet the Ontario 

Public Health Standards, the legislative guideposts to ensure the health of Ontarians, set out by the Ministry of Health. We ask that the 

Ministry return the funding to the previous 75:25 Provincial/Municipal allocation, provide an increase to base funding sufficient to 

reflect ongoing accountability for managing COVID-19 as a Disease of Public Health Significance, and increase funding to address 

inflationary pressures. Sufficient and stable funding for public health is required to maintain the public health services that are essential 

to the health of our communities, now and into the future.  

Sincerely, 

Matt Newton-Reid      Emily Williams, BScN, RN, MBA, CHE  Dr. Alex Summers MD, MPH, CCFP, FRCPC 

Board Chair  Secretary and Treasurer  Medical Officer of Health 

Middlesex-London Health Unit       Middlesex-London Health Unit   Middlesex-London Health Unit 

CC: All Ontario Boards of Health 

Middlesex-London Board of Health Members 

David Jansseune, Assistant Director, Finance, Middlesex-London Health Unit 

Page 89 of 120

https://www.healthunit.com/news/mlhu-opens-new-dental-office
https://www.health.gov.on.ca/en/pro/programs/publichealth/oph_standards/
https://www.health.gov.on.ca/en/pro/programs/publichealth/oph_standards/


480 University Ave., Suite 300 
Toronto, Ontario  M5G 1V2 

Tel: (416) 595-0006 
E-mail: info@alphaweb.org 

 

www.alphaweb.org Providing Leadership in Public Health Management 

alPHa’s members are 
the public health 
units in Ontario. 
 

alPHa Sections: 

Boards of Health 
Section 

Council of Ontario 
Medical Officers of 
Health (COMOH) 
 

Affiliate 
Organizations: 

Association of Ontario 
Public Health Business 
Administrators 

Association of  
Public Health 
Epidemiologists  
in Ontario  

Association of 
Supervisors of Public 
Health Inspectors of 
Ontario 

Health Promotion 
Ontario  

Ontario Association of 
Public Health Dentistry  

Ontario Association of 
Public Health Nursing 
Leaders 

Ontario Dietitians in 
Public Health 

 

 

 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Hon. Sylvia Jones                     August 23, 2023 
Deputy Premier and Minister of Health  
Ministry of Health 
College Park 5th Flr, 777 Bay St 
Toronto, ON M7A 2J3 
 
 
Dear Minister Jones, 
 
Re: Public Health Funding and Capacity Announcement  

 
On behalf of the Association of Local Public Health Agencies (alPHa) and its Council of 
Ontario Medical Officers of Health Section, Boards of Health Section, and Affiliate 
Associations, I am writing to thank you for the commitments you made to local public 
health as part of your address to the Association of Municipalities of Ontario (AMO) on 
August 22, 2023.  
 
A healthier population contributes to a stronger economy and reduces demand for costly 
and scarce health care resources. Local public health agencies provide programs and 
services that promote well-being, prevent disease and injury, and protect population 
health. One of our foundational positions is that, regardless of the sources of funding for 
public health in Ontario, mechanisms must be included to ensure the total funding 
envelope is stable, predictable, protected, and sufficient for the full delivery of all public 
health programs and services. 
 
alPHa is pleased about the restoration of the $47 million in provincial annual base 
funding and to hear your message to our public health unit members that they can 
expect a guaranteed increase of 1% of the base funding in each of the next three years 
and it is a positive step forward. While this may not be sufficient to completely meet our 
mandate, we do appreciate knowing what our thresholds will be when planning our 
budgets during this time. alPHa notes your observation this will afford the opportunity 
and time to work together to address long-standing challenges in the system.  
 
Thank you for recognition of the value of local public health expertise and for the 
opportunity to help shape the future of local public health. alPHa is committed to our 
work that supports the Ontario government’s goals to be efficient, effective, and provide 
value for money. 
 
We appreciated our recent meeting with you and look forward to collaborating with you 
further. To schedule a meeting, please have your staff contact Loretta Ryan, Executive 
Director, alPHa, at loretta@alphaweb.org or 647-325-9594. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
 
Dr. Charles Gardner,  
President 
 

Page 90 of 120

mailto:loretta@alphaweb.org


Copy:   Dr. Kieran Moore, Chief Medical Officer of Health, Ontario  
Elizabeth Walker, Executive Lead, Office of the CMOH  
Brent Feeney, Director, Accountability and Liaison, Office of the CMOH 

 

The Association of Local Public Health Agencies (alPHa) is a not-for-profit organization that provides 
leadership to Ontario’s boards of health. alPHa represents all of Ontario’s 34 boards of health, 
medical officers and associate medical officers of health, and senior public health managers in each 
of the public health disciplines – nursing, inspections, nutrition, dentistry, health promotion, 
epidemiology, and business administration. As public health leaders, alPHa advises and lends 
expertise to members on the governance, administration, and management of health units. The 
Association also collaborates with governments and other health organizations, advocating for a 
strong, effective, and efficient public health system in the province. Through policy analysis, 
discussion, collaboration, and advocacy, alPHa’s members and staff act to promote public health 
policies that form a strong foundation for the improvement of health promotion and protection, 
disease prevention and surveillance services in all of Ontario’s communities. 

Page 91 of 120



 

 

 
 
September 1, 2023 
 
 
To Partner Agencies of the Simcoe Muskoka District Health Unit: 

I am happy to announce that Natalie Riewe has been selected as the new Clinical Service Vice 
President (VP) (Immunization, Infectious Disease, Sexual Health & Oral Health programs), 
commencing on September 2, 2023. I also wish to take this moment to thank Mary Ann Holmes 
for her time as acting VP of Clinical Service, and Colleen Nisbet who held the VP position for 
over a decade.  

Natalie has worked in public health at the Simcoe Muskoka District Health Unit (SMDHU) for 
over 17 years in various capacities, and most recently as Chief Nursing Officer (CNO) since 
March 8, 2019. Previous to her CNO role, she held management roles since 2013 in the former 
Reproductive Health Program, the former Child Health Program, the Healthy Growth and 
Development Program and as acting Assistant VP (while also being CNO) within the Community 
and Family Health Department. Before her work in public health, Natalie worked a number of 
years in the hospital setting. 

During the pandemic Natalie, as CNO, provided strong leadership on many fronts to protect the 
work environment, support recruitment for our mass vaccination clinic, develop and implement 
our agency COVID vaccination policy, and lead in the development of our agency Recovery Plan 
and our Strategic Plan.  

I am also pleased to announce that effective September 2, Carolyn Shoreman will take on the 
CNO role in addition to being VP of the Community and Family Health Department. Carolyn has 
provided extensive nursing leadership at SMDHU for many years at a senior management level. 
I wish to thank her for taking on this additional leadership role.  
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
ORIGINAL Signed By: 
 
 
Charles Gardner, MD, CCFP, MHSc, FRCPC 
Medical Officer of Health 
 

Page 92 of 120



 

 

September 7, 2023 

The Honourable Sylvia Jones 
Deputy Premier and Minister of Health  
Ministry of Health 
College Park 5th Floor, 777 Bay Street 
Toronto ON M7A 2J3 
sylvia.jones@ontario.ca 
 
Dear Minister Jones: 
 
Re: Bill 103, Smoke-Free Ontario Amendment Act (Vaping is not for Kids), 2023  
 
Electronic cigarettes (e-cigarettes) are addicting youth to nicotine at an alarming rate. 
Between 2017-2019, vaping rates doubled among Ontario students in grades 7-12. In 
Simcoe Muskoka, 32% of students in grades 7-12 and 43% of high school students reported 
using an e-cigarette in the past year. This is particularly concerning when considering the 
highly addictive effects of nicotine in e-cigarettes is associated with an increased risk for 
future tobacco cigarette use among youth who vape (Ontario Agency for Health Protection 
and Promotion, 2018). Further, there are significant health risks associated with youth vaping 
as a result of the toxic and carcinogenic substances in devices including lung damage, 
changes to the brain, burns, dependence or addiction, difficulty learning, and increased 
anxiety and stress. 
 
As chair of the Simcoe Muskoka District Health Unit (SMDHU) Board of Health I am writing in 
support of Public Health Sudbury and Districts letter on June 28, 2023 regarding Bill 103, 
Smoke-Free Ontario Amendment Act (Vaping is not for Kids), 2023. Bill 103’s focus on 
preventing youth uptake of vaping is important to decrease morbidity and mortality and keep 
Ontarians out of the healthcare system now and in the future. This includes prohibiting the 
promotion of vapour products, raising the minimum age for purchasing vapour products and 
requiring that specialty vape stores obtain store location approval from the Board of Health.  
 
Such amendments proposed by Bill 103 align with the philosophy of previous positions of the 
Board of Health, which have been focused on reducing nicotine and tobacco use in our 
communities. This includes previous Board communications to the Province of Ontario and 
the Federal Government in support of the previous 2017 Tobacco Endgame for Canada 
(committing to a target of less than 5% tobacco use in Canada by 2035), supporting previous 
tobacco tax increases (2018) and a 2014 letter to the Director General, Health Products and 
Food Branch Inspectorate regarding the increased use and availability of electronic 
cigarettes.   
 
In 2023, the Board of Health called on the Ontario government to establish a renewed 
smoking, vaping and nicotine strategy which was supported from the Association of Local 
Public Health Agencies and the linked letter was sent in August 2023 to the Ontario Minister 
of Health. Such communications to government have been supported by SMDHU’s 
comprehensive approach to smoke-free programming via education, promotion and  
 

Page 93 of 120

mailto:sylvia.jones@ontario.ca
https://cdn.ymaws.com/www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/1EB276C2-F6A2-41CC-ADC6-93FA4488EA12/alPHa_Letter_A23-2_Smoking_Vaping_Nicotine_Strategy_150823.pdf


 
 

enforcement efforts which are required to manage increasing youth vaping rates through 
strategies that prevent nicotine addiction such as the Not An Experiment initiative.  
 
The proposed requirements of Bill 103 to the Smoke-Free Ontario Act would have a positive 
impact on the health of Ontarians, in particular for the youth. Bill 103, if passed, would result 
in reducing the availability of vape devices and restrict vaping product advertising that has 
resulted in an increase in nicotine addiction and increasing present and future stress on the 
healthcare system. SMDHU would be happy to work with your government in supporting the 
changes proposed within Bill 103 as a part of our comprehensive strategy to reduce youth 
vaping and decrease nicotine addiction. 
 
Sincerely,  
 
ORIGINAL Signed By: 
 
Ann-Marie Kungl, Board of Health Chair 
Simcoe Muskoka District Health Unit  
 
 
AMK:CG:SR:sh 
 
 
cc:  France Gélinas, Member of Provincial Parliament, Nickel Belt  

Dr. Kieran Moore, Chief Medical Officer of Health  
Honourable Michael Parsa, Minister of Children, Community and Social Services  
Honourable Steve Clark, Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing  
All Ontario Boards of Health  
Association of Local Public Health Agencies 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 94 of 120

https://www.notanexperiment.ca/


 
 

References 
 
Ontario Agency for Health Protection and Promotion (Public Health Ontario). Berenbaum E,  
Keller-Olaman S, Manson H, Moloughney B, Muir S, Simms C, Singh H, Watson K. Current 
evidence on e-cigarettes: a summary of potential impacts. Toronto, ON: Queen’s Printer for 
Ontario; 2018. 
 

Page 95 of 120



Page 96 of 120



Page 97 of 120



Page 98 of 120



Page 99 of 120



Page 100 of 120



Page 101 of 120



 

September 15, 2023 
 
The Honourable Doug Ford  
Premier of Ontario  
Delivered via email: premier@ontario.ca  
 
The Honourable Sylvia Jones  
Deputy Premier, Minister of Health  
Delivered via email: sylvia.jones@pc.ola.org  
 
Dear Premier Ford and Deputy Premier and Minister Jones: 
 
Re:  Universal, No-cost Coverage for all Prescription Contraceptive Options for all Ontarians  
 
On September 6, 2023, at a regular meeting of the Board for the Timiskaming Health Unit, the Board 
considered the correspondence from Chatham-Kent Public Health regarding Universal, No-cost Coverage 
for all Prescription Contraceptive Options for all Ontarians and passed the following motion:   
 
Motion 42R-2023):  
BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Timiskaming Health Unit Board of Health recognizes the importance of access 
to contraception and menstrual products for all Ontarians; and  
 
FURTHER THAT the Board encourages the Provincial government to cover the cost of all contraceptive 
options for all Ontario residents; and  
 
FURTHER THAT the Premier of Ontario and Deputy Premier be so advised.  
 
The Timiskaming Health Unit fully supports the above recommendation, and thanks you for your 
consideration. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Stacy Wight, Board of Health Chair 
  
Copy to:  
John Vanthof, MPP – Timiskaming-Cochrane  
Anthony Rota, MP – Timiskaming-Nipissing  
Charlie Angus, MP –Timmins-James Bay 
Association of Local Public Health Agencies (alPHa) 
Ontario Boards of Health 
 
 

Page 102 of 120



www.ckpublichealth.com 

Municipality of Chatham-Kent 
Public Health  
PO Box 1136, 435 Grand Avenue West 
Chatham, ON  N7M 5L8 

Tel: 519.352.7270    Fax: 519.352.2166 

April 25, 2023 

The Honourable Doug Ford  
Premier of Ontario  
Delivered via email: premier@ontario.ca 

The Honourable Sylvia Jones 
Deputy Premier 
Minister of Health  
Delivered via email: sylvia.jones@pc.ola.org 

Dear Premier Ford and Deputy Premier and Minister Jones: 

RE:   Universal, No-cost Coverage for all Prescription Contraceptive Options to 
all People Living in Ontario 

At its meeting held on March 15, 2023, the Chatham-Kent Board of Health passed the 
following motion: 

“That Administration prepare a letter of advocacy to the Provincial government 
encouraging them to cover the cost of birth control for all Ontario residents, and 
that this letter be copied to alPHa and any other appropriate partners.” 

It is estimated that 30-40% of all pregnancies in Canada are unintended with those of 
lower socioeconomic status being one of the leading vulnerable groups impacted1. 
Timely access to effective contraception directly influences the rate of unintended 
pregnancies. In Canada, cost is the leading barrier preventing individuals from gaining 
access to effective contraceptives2/3. Cost should not be a barrier Ontarians face to 
obtain consistent and timely access to effective contraceptives. 

OHIP+ has begun to address this issue in Ontario by providing no cost coverage for 
anyone under the age of 25 who is not covered by a private plan. This coverage needs 
to be expanded to all Ontarians without the restrictions put on those with private plans 
or those over the age of 24. Ontarians should have universal, no-cost, confidential 
access to effective contraceptives. 

At the beginning of April, British Columbia started the journey of providing prescription 
contraceptive access equality for their province and we are advocating for Ontario in 
this journey. 

…/2 

Page 103 of 120

mailto:premier@ontario.ca
mailto:sylvia.jones@pc.ola.org


Hon. Doug Ford  Page 2 of 2 
April 25, 2023 

Thank you for your attention to this important issue. We stand firmly in support of 
protecting and advancing sexual and reproductive health rights.  
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Original signed by 
 
Brock McGregor  
Chair, Chatham-Kent Board of Health 
 
 
Copy to: 
Hon. Monte McNaughton, MPP, Lambton-Kent-Middlesex, Minister of Labour, Training 
and Skills Development 
Trevor Jones, MPP, Chatham-Kent-Leamington 
Loretta Ryan, Executive Director, Association of Local Public Health Agencies (alPHa) 
Ontario Public Health Units 
 
 
1 Nethery E, Schummers L, Maginley S, Dunn S and Norman W. “Household income 
and  contraceptive methods among female youth:a cross sectional study using the 
Canadian Community Health Survey (2009-2010 And 2013-2014)”. CMAJ Open, vol. 7, 
no. 4, 2019   Retrieved from www.cmajopen.ca/content/7/4/E646 
2 Hulme Jennifer, et al. “Barriers and Facilitators to Family Planning Access in Canada.” 
Healthcare Policy, Politiques De Sante, vol 10, no.3, 2015, pp. 48-63., 
doi:10.12927/hcpol.2015.24169 
3 Black, Amanda Y., et al. “The Cost of Unintended Pregnancies in Canada: Estimating 
Direct Cost, Role of Imperfect Adherence, and the Potential Impact of Increased Use of 
Long-Acting Reversible Contraceptives.” Journal of Obstetrics and Gynaecology 
Canada, vol. 37, no. 12, 2015.pp. pp. 1086-1097., doi:101016/s1701-2163(16)30074-3. 
 

Page 104 of 120

http://www.cmajopen.ca/content/7/4/E646


�����������	
���������������������������������������� !��"�#$��%&�'$()$ *����'$()$ *��"��$+,�-���#$��%&�.���/,����$ 0,/$�1�((,%%$$*�����$-,� ��2)�,/�#$��%&�'�-�+$ *�$3%$()$ �456�7879�$3%$()$ �7879�:-"�� $�;<�����=>
������
���������?��=�
�@A
B��	�	�����
==����>��C������
�������������=����D���
������D��>��E�=��F��D�
��
�����D�	����G���E���
����G�
�@A
�
D��F�����G�D�����=��>��D�G�
�>��F����H����������
��
�=�
���H��EH�$�!$ �%���$�!$ �I���'$**�+$�" �(����#�J*�� $*,!$-%�I��$3%$()$ �7879�
K�����	�F�������L�=��	�������
�>������C
���
�>����������
����M>��=������������
���
���������
������
��������	����NG���D
��=����D���
����D��������������������D�F����C�����C����	
�>
����C�=��E�
	�>���F��H�O��������C��>��E�
�����D�	����C��	�����P���������C�A�
����
�>������������������D
����
�>���C���
���G����D
��=�
��C�������������D�����
�����������
F��MC���������Q���������
��NG�	
�
E��E������C
������
���DD��G�
�>�=�������R��E���D
���������D��������	=
D���������=��E�
	�H�S�������D����Q�G�����
F��
������D��F�>�D�		���D
�����
�>���E
E�	����C��	�����TCC�D���C�����U���C�

VWX

Page 105 of 120



��������	

������
����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
���������������������������������� ��������
���������!�"����������������������������	�����������������������������#�����������������������������������������������#���������������������
�������������
�������������������������������������$%$&��'�����(�������������������������������)�������������������������	������������������������������$%$*+(���������������������(��������(����������������
���� ����������������,������������������������
������������-,����������������(����������.����������������
����������������������������������������������������������/��������(���������������������������������������������0�������������������1���������
���������������(����������������������������������������������������������������������
������������������������������������(��������������������������������
������������������������������������������(����������������������������������������������)���������������������	������2����������������������������+(������������������
�����������������������������'�������
�����(�'��������������������������
��������������������(���������������������.��������������������

(�
������������������������������������������������������������������
�������������������������������������/�������3���������������������4567895:78;89�<=>?;@�A7B?5:�
C������C������������
�����������������
�	�������)C�	+�/��
������(����1������(�C������$$(���������������
������������������������������������������D���������!�C������
���/�������������/����������/�����������������������������
�������
��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
�����(��������������������������������������������1�����������������������
���������!�	�������'������������������������������������������������������������������������������������"��������������E������������(�����	

�����
�����/���
���������	

������
����������������
������������������������1���������������������
������������

FGH

Page 106 of 120



�����������	�
�����	���
�����
�����	����������������	�����������������
���������
��������
���������������������	�����������������
����������������
������
	��
��������	��������
��
�����������������
� ����!�����������������������	���
��������������
���������
����������!�����������	 	�����
��
�����"�#���
����������	��
������������ ������������
���
��� ���!��	�������	��
��
����
��������
����!������������		��	������
�������
�	�������������������
��������
�	����������������
���
���
������������
�������
�	�������������������������������������������
����	�	����"��������	��
��������
��������������������
���	�������	����������!��������������

����!����������������!��	���"$%&'()%*�+,*�)-%�./01.�2324�5.//�6789,(':8;�6%<)',=�>%%)'=&(;�.=?�@,*A(-,9(�#���	������
���������������BCBD�E����� ���	�����������
������
�	���
��F���	���	��	�
������
G�H��	���
������������� ���������������������������
��!�
���������
�����I	���������!�����������	 	���"�#���	������
��	�JDKK����	���H��
�� �����
�����	��������"�L��
��	������
��
�����
�� �	�		��
	��������!�����������������	��
��������
�
�����������! ���������������
��
��������������
������
�	��
����������
��
"����
���	������
���������
���������
�����	�������������������
�����	���	�������M��������N	��������
�#����	���	���E����������
�����F��������������OPQ��"�"��
�R���!���BB��
������S������
������#�	�������
������
��
������
��
��F����������OPQ��"�"��
�R���!���BD"�����	��
���������������	� �	��������������������
����
����!���������������	���������
���!�����������
������BCBQ�F�
����� ���	���"�H��	��������
��������	����
�T����������
�� ������

�����������!�����������������	�������������
��	������������
��"�H�����������������������
���	�������!	�����	��
��	���
����
�����������������!����������"�UV�����������
�����		�����
����!�������	��
����	�����	���������������������������!������������
�������������
����	"�E�����������������	������������������ ����� ���	��������������
������������
������
�����
��"��������
��� ��������!	������	�!��
����������������������	����
��
�"����	��������������������������������� �����������	G�

WXY

Page 107 of 120



���

Page 108 of 120



��������	
��
��
	������

���

Page 109 of 120



���������	��
�������������������������������������������������������� !��
��������������������������
�"��������������#����	�����������
����
�������	������������
����������$������������%������#����
�����������
����
���#�����������"����������&��'�������(#����������
����"��
����������������#���)�'
�������������������*������������������������
�"�������#��
������������������������"������������������
����
�������+����(��
�"����������,���#��
����������#���������������%(����#��-�.������	�/���
�"��$������#�������
��%01-�.���#�#���������#�������#���	����$�&��'������#�����������	����#$�2����������������������������������#$3�#��-�.��
���#�����
������#�������������������
���	��������������������
$�2������
���#������������������#�#�-����.4����#��
��������	������	����"
����
����#����"���������#�#$3����������"������#����"�(#���������������������#��������	��������
����
�������$�3�#������������	����������%���#�����	��������
���������5�����$6�*������	��
����-�.���#�������������������#$�'
��#��#�����������������	�������������������#����������� ��$�$�������#��!����������7��
$�8�������	��"��#������������������������������+�9:;;<=>�:;;�?=@:A<B�CB:ADE�BF�GH:;@IJ�KHLH;�MN�OBMA�HPNHA@<EH�Q<@I�BMA�RST�@A:<=<=>�UBMAEHE�DHE<>=HD�VME@�FBA�OBMW�

XYZ

Page 110 of 120



��������		��
�	�����������������������
���������������������	�����
���������������
���
�����	
��������������������� !"#$#%!�&"$'#'#(�%�)"*!+�	����������
���
���,������������������	�-������.���
�/�������	��0��1�������������������������
���
����	������2�3������2���������������2����	2�	�������	2��������
������4������	��
�	����������	
�������	�,��	��
������,�5��������������������6�%'$7�8!&!"9'#$#&*��:��!$7&;�&"$'#'#(�%�)"*!<5������
���������3�/���������������	��3�.���
�����������
���
�����������������,�����	��=���	������
�����5�2�5�����+�	����	�.�����
���3�>�	2�����5�����,�����	�/��.��������	���������	�,���������������	�?	�,������	����3�����@��	������,�������������������A�B�	���������	����������������������
���	�	�3���-������.���
�=���	�C-.=	D��E��	�	
�����
���
���3���������
����F!!&�&;!�*G!$H!"*�:�"��)"�#!I�����6!%&'�#�&"$'#'#(�%�)"*!*JK�����	�3���������	3������,���������5������������	����	2�+������L���������E������?�����L���
�2�������������������
��
�����	�������	��
�	��������5�������������
���
���,��������������		��
�����������		�	����������/���������������	��3�.���
��MN�)&�&;!�*G!$H!"*�+������L�������	��
����������3�-������3����
�O		����������3�+�����������	��3���������CO+�D�3����PQRQ����PQPP��/
�S�����O+�����PQRQ��3���PT����	����
��
���������4�,�������	����
����������	�,���������������������		�	������+���������������	,�������,�����������	���	������������
�+���	�����3�.���
��+������
�	���+�	��	��3�E���3�����	�����E���/�
�����������������
��+�	��	��3�-������.���
����PQRR��L
����
����
������2�+������
�	���������3���
����		����3����������
���
�����
��5��	�,����������3��
�	������/
�����
�	�
�����������������������	�����������3��������������	��		2�?�,����U���������E������?�����	��
�<5����,����������3��
�O		����������3�E�����-������.���
�O����	��
��	
�33���,��������	������������	��
���	��		��3��
�O		�������������	������	�������
���3�	��	���	�����2�33���,2�����33�������������
���
�	�	�������
����,�����-�,���	��2�E��������	��
����������3�-������O33���	�3����
���������-��3		������-�����	�V�	�������
��	
����,��������	
�������
��,��������������,����3��
�V�	�����1	���,�������������	2��������������2�������������������33���	��-���������
�	2�E������������3����
�L�������W������3�L���������
�+���	�����3�+���������O33���	�����.��	����L
	��������������		��33������������������������������,�������������������	����	��
���������,����������������������
���
�����	
����L����������2��	�,������	���2��������������3����������������
���	�	�3���-������.���
�=���	�C-.=	D2�,�	���������	���

XYZ

Page 111 of 120



����������	
��������
���
�����
�
������������������������� ����!���"#�$��%� ��&��'���(���)��'�#���&*�+�+ ����&��'�����&�&��&*���*���!���'��!)��������&������!&�&��!�+�&������,� ��&�����&����,� -.��%�,�������&��!�,��!)��&*������������/�0'�-���*������ ��&�����&���,� -.��%�����!-��&*������������&*�&�-���%���)���1��&��+�1�������� ��,����������!)���'�����������!1�%�&*��� ���'�)������&��!�&�����)�!2���*�%� /�����!)�'������&�!���!�&*�����������&���� ���-/3��������������� ����!�&*����"#��%� ��&���!���)�45���!&�&��!�6�!����'���(���)���'�#���&*�73�����)�8� /�9:9;<3����%��'�(���)��'�#���&*�=�� ���&-,�9:>?,�7"�%��"��!&������!&�&��!,�8� /�9@,�9:9;<=�����6�&&���4�A�)�&���'���(���)���'�#���&*�7B�)��,�C�!��?,�9:9><5 ����&��!���'���(���)��'�#���&*��!)���&*��6�!���������&,�9::>�73�����)�9:9><D����!�!���E���1�&�73�����)�9:99<3��1�6�!���+�!&�'���#���&*�A!�&�#���&*-�3�����F�++�!�&����E���1�&

E*��5!&�����"� ����#���&*�G&�!)��)�"� ���������!&���3�����!)�D����!�!���5������%�7'���"����!����������!&����&��(5#<5!&�����(���)���'�#���&*� -�3����!=��&��'�A!�&�����&�)� -�6�!�������&-=��&��'�6�!�������&�������&�)� -�#���&*�A!�&6��4�(���)���'�#���&*�E-���HFF#""�3����&4�"��'�����'�5!&����I��"� ����#���&*�G-�&�+�79:9><E*��6�!�������3�����'�"� ����#���&*79:99�A��'�E�3����&<(���)���'�#���&*��!)�5!&�����H�&.'��."��'�&�F������&��!����&��J	��K���
�L�M�
M�


NOP

Page 112 of 120



����������	
����	��
�����		����
���������������	��������������������������������������	
����	�����	
�
��������������������������
�����������
����������������	���������
�������������
�����
������������
������������
		��������
����
��		��������
����������
�
������	����������
��
����������������������
���
��������	�������	�������������	������	
���	
�����
���
	�	������������������������������	
�	���
	�	������������������
��	��� �����������
�����
��
��	���������������	�����!�����
���"��������#��$%#&'�#�(��������
��"��	�������)������*���#��	����	�+��
���,��	��-./012�345067�8965:1;
-./012�345067�8965:1;�<4=;.:24=����	
����	�������
��,�������>�������
��"���
������?
�������	���	
����	�������
��@���A������	�����������������
��"���
������?
�������	����
������
������������������
���������������
����
����������
�������
������
�
���
������
���
��	��
���B�? C#DE��
��	���*���������������
�������
���������
���������	�����
����������	
*�������������������
�������
���������
		������������������
�������������	�
�����	������
���
����FG�	��������
�������
�������
��	��
������H	��������������	������������
�������������H����������	�	�������
�����
�
��	�B�? C#DE#����
�
�����
��	��
��!����������@����
�	
*�
��������������� B(��������
�	�������������A����B�? C#DE����
��
�������������
�
����
�����

IJK

Page 113 of 120



������������	�
���������������������
	���������������������
��������������������������������������������� �!���"�#����������$���������%�&�������#���'�$�����������&������(�����
�����#��������
�������%���������������(���%
�������%���$����&���%�����������')
����������%�*�������������������	����+�,����(�-�&����	���.�/���0
������1�2324&�,"5/67�8���������0
�$�������������������9:;<=>?@�ABC >;�D�! EF�G?E!H><�IJ�?E�0�����	���67�K�������
�%���L�%��������"�#�
��M�+�&�,"5/67+���%��0,�#�������2324/2N�0�����0�����	���23�K�����8�	������'�(�(��(�O���������������,������(�0�����	���2P�K���������$�����#�������
�%���L�%��������"�#�
��M�+�&�,"5/67+���%��0,�#�������2324/2N�0�����"��������%�������Q��
������(��$����R�&���S��
��������'$�������(����������
�/��/%�����������������$����TU����%�����$���R�&���S��
�����Q������������������(��#���#
��������%��(���#��������$����T9:;<=>?@�VWXAD�IJ�?E��!?Y�Z�C>?!H�
0����������[����%(���������������������(�\0[��]�\0���T�26/22]U'�̂���"�2324�&��#�������\0���T�22/24]��
��8�����
��/����̂�"���'"���8'."�̂ ��0'�"'0�2322_�2324�\0���T�2̀]%̂����$������#����������0������#���U�����(�\0���T�2a/27]bcE�H�!�EFH��de�!H�F>!EB�f�g B��h>E>���>��H�EBH?>?@�E<�i<H<?E<j�

klm

Page 114 of 120



����������	
���	���������������������������
��	��������������	��������������������������������� ����	�����!	����"�������������	���"���	������������������������������������� �#��������������������������"���������$� ��������%����
�� � !	����&��������""������"�������
�������'����������"�������"���	����������	��	��&����������������� ������������	���������&�����������������"�������������������	�����(�����������������	����������	��	��&��������
������&����)���	����������)����������"��������������������	����)�����
������������������������	�"��)��������)���������"���	��"���	 �*�����)��������	�������������	��������"����������������	 ���+,-�./01�/213/40�5/6�77899�:;:<�=-=>-60,32�?6-�4/@�?A?3B?>B-C�
����������)�������	��	��������	��DDEFF�"��������%������G����F��&�� ��H�����������������������������
�����������������������	��"����������������������)����	������������ �F�)����	�I���	���	��"��'�����������������������������������������������������J���������H���������K�H����������)�'L DDEFF���	������	��"������	���	��&���(��	����	��&�����������)�	���������������������	������������������������)�����������(��	����	
��������&������F�����)���������(��	����	����M����
�F�'�������������������D���
�G	���"�����������	����D�����������
�F���������F���������F������	�"��������#���	�)����
�F)�����
�N�������������������������	�#������		
��	�������	�������OD$M�(��	����	 ��������������������DDEFF
�	��&�����	�	�������������������	��������)���	�����&����	�	��		�������������#�P�	����
�����������������������"�������������������PFD �P��������
�DDEFF���	�������	�"�����	��)�	��&��	���	�����	����"��������	������	��)�I�����	��&����������	������&�����������)�	�������	 �E���"���������"��)������������Q�������DDEFF
���������O�����D�		���
�DDEFF��������������R��������		���S��"		 ������&�	�������DDEFF����	���R���� ��"		 ��

TUV

Page 115 of 120



��������������	
�����������������������������������
�������������������������������������
���� ���������� �����������!"#$%&�'��������(�)����*�����+&&�	���,������-.��/01#"2�������
�� ��
��(�����������
����������34�������������(����������������������������
567

Page 116 of 120



From: allhealthunits on behalf of alPHa communications
To: AllHealthUnits@lists.alphaweb.org
Cc: board@lists.alphaweb.org
Subject: [allhealthunits] 2023 alPHa Fall Symposium registration now open
Date: Friday, September 22, 2023 2:09:17 PM
Attachments: image001.png

This email originated outside of Algoma Public Health. Do not open attachments or click links
unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

ATTENTION:

All Board of Health Members
All Medical Officers of Health and Associate Medical Officers of Health
All Senior Public Health Directors & Managers
 

Dear alPHa Members,

We are excited to announce that registration is now open for the 2023 Fall Symposium, Section
Meetings, and Workshops that are taking place November 22-24, 2023! 

Kicking off the event will be the workshops. The first workshop, How to Use a Human Rights Based

Framework in the Workplace, will be held from 1 p.m. to 4 p.m. on November 22nd and the second
workshop, Importance of Risk Communication in A Changing World, will take place from 1 p.m. to 4

p.m. on November 23rd. The workshops are being offered at no additional cost to attendees. You will
also be signed-up automatically to attend when you register for the Fall Symposium. 

We have a fantastic lineup of speakers for the Symposium that is taking place on November 24th

including: Dr. Charles Gardner (President, alPHa), Dr. Kieran Moore (Chief Medical Officer of Health),
Cynthia St. John (CEO, Southwestern Public Health), Maria Sánchez-Keane (Principal Consultant,
Centre for Organizational Effectiveness), and Michael Sherar (President and CEO, Public Health
Ontario). The preliminary program can be accessed by clicking here. The Section meetings are also
taking place that day and the draft agenda for the Boards of Health Section is available through this

Page 117 of 120

mailto:allhealthunits-bounces@lists.alphaweb.org
mailto:communications@alphaweb.org
mailto:AllHealthUnits@lists.alphaweb.org
mailto:board@lists.alphaweb.org
https://www.alphaweb.org/events/EventDetails.aspx?id=1763220&group=
https://cdn.ymaws.com/www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/B115C8CB-9A11-433E-988A-E4FEF2540EE1/alPHa_2023_Fall_Symposium_Program.pdf
https://cdn.ymaws.com/www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/416F2F9A-0EAC-4048-B813-BB13B720D2A7/BOH_Program_241123.pdf



link. The COMOH Section meeting agenda will be released at a later date.

Registration is $399.00+HST and the closing date to register is Wednesday, November 15, 2023.
Please note, you must be an alPHa Member to participate in the Fall Symposium, Section Meetings
and Workshops.

alPHa would also like to thank the University of Toronto’s Dalla Lana School of Public Health and
Eastern Ontario Health Unit for their generous event support.

We hope to see you November 22-24, 2023!

Take Care, 

Loretta

____________________________________________

Loretta Ryan, CAE, RPP
Executive Director
Association of Local Public Health Agencies (alPHa)
480 University Avenue, Suite 300
Toronto, ON  M5G 1V2
Tel: 416-595-0006 ext. 222
Cell: 647-325-9594
loretta@alphaweb.org
www.alphaweb.org
 

 

Page 118 of 120

https://cdn.ymaws.com/www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/416F2F9A-0EAC-4048-B813-BB13B720D2A7/BOH_Program_241123.pdf
mailto:loretta@alphaweb.org
http://www.alphaweb.org/
http://www.alphaweb.org/


From: allhealthunits on behalf of Loretta Ryan
To: All Health Units
Cc: board@lists.alphaweb.org
Subject: [allhealthunits] Health Promotion Ontario White Paper on the Value of Local Health Promotion
Date: Thursday, September 21, 2023 1:13:07 PM
Attachments: image001.png

This email originated outside of Algoma Public Health. Do not open attachments or click links
unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Hello,
 
I am pleased to share Health Promotion’s White Paper on the Value of Local Health Promotion in
Ontario and accompanying infographic.  While Health Promotion Ontario has a broad membership
based including public health, community health centres and non-profit organizations, this paper is
focused on those who work in health promotion in local public health units.
 
Health promotion is needed now more than ever.  Ontario is currently facing competing crises,
including healthcare, opioids, mental health, homelessness and climate change.  Health promotion –
a cost-effective, well researched and evidence driven practice – is a critical strategy that can be
leveraged to help mitigate these crises.  It is a practice that is uniquely positioned to forge strategic
partnerships across sectors which it critical for addressing the many complex issues before us.
 
In this paper, Health Promotion Ontario recommends a strong investment in local health promotion
delivered by Ontario’s Public Health Units by maintaining the current breadth and scope of health
promotion work outlined in the Ontario Public Health Standards. 
 
I would like to thank Dr. Charles Gardner, Trudy Sachowski, and Loretta Ryan for their input into the
paper.
 
I encourage you to share broadly.
 
Best, Susan
Chair, Health Promotion Ontario
 
 
Susan Stewart, MA (she/her)
Director, Community Health and Well-Being Portfolio
 
Phone: 613-549-1232, ext. 1126
Cell:  613-561-8328
Toll-Free: 1-800-267-7875
Fax: 613-549-7896
susan.stewart@kflaph.ca
 
KFL&A Public Health

Page 119 of 120

mailto:allhealthunits-bounces@lists.alphaweb.org
mailto:loretta@alphaweb.org
mailto:allhealthunits@lists.alphaweb.org
mailto:board@lists.alphaweb.org
https://www.healthpromotioncanada.ca/wp-content/uploads/2023/09/HPO-Value-of-Local-Health-Promotion-White-Paper.pdf
https://www.healthpromotioncanada.ca/wp-content/uploads/2023/09/HPO-Value-of-Local-Health-Promotion-White-Paper.pdf
https://www.healthpromotioncanada.ca/wp-content/uploads/2023/09/Infographic-HPO-Value-of-Local-Health-Promotion.pdf
mailto:susan.stewart@kflaph.ca



221 Portsmouth Avenue
Kingston, Ontario  K7M 1V5
www.kflaph.ca
 
Connect with us on Facebook | Twitter | YouTube
 
KFL&A Public Health is situated on the traditional territories of the Anishinaabe and
Haudenosaunee. 
 

 
This e-mail may contain privileged and confidential information intended only for the individual or
entity named in the message.  If the reader of this message is not the intended recipient, or the
agent responsible to deliver it to the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any review,
dissemination, distribution or copying of this communication is prohibited.  If this communication
was received in error, please notify us by reply e-mail and delete the original message.
 
Le présent message peut contenir des renseignements confidentiels réservés à l’usage exclusif du
destinataire ou de l’organisme y figurant. Par conséquent, si vous n’êtes pas le destinataire de ce
message ou la personne devant le lui remettre, nous vous avisons qu’il est strictement interdit de le
passer en revue, de le diffuser, de le distribuer ou de le copier. Si vous avez reçu ce message par
erreur, nous vous remercions de nous en aviser par retour de courriel et de détruire le message
original.
 
____________________________________________
Loretta Ryan, CAE, RPP
Executive Director
Association of Local Public Health Agencies (alPHa)
480 University Avenue, Suite 300
Toronto, ON  M5G 1V2
Tel: 416-595-0006 ext. 222
Cell: 647-325-9594
loretta@alphaweb.org
www.alphaweb.org
 

 
 
 

Page 120 of 120

http://www.kflaph.ca/
https://www.facebook.com/kflapublichealth/
https://twitter.com/KFLAPH
https://www.youtube.com/user/KFLAPublicHealth
mailto:loretta@alphaweb.org
http://www.alphaweb.org/
http://www.alphaweb.org/

	Cover Page
	Algoma Public Health Board of Health Meeting Table of Contents
	Call to Order
	Declaration of Conflict of Interest

	Adoption of Agenda
	September 27, 2023, Board of Health Meeting Agenda

	Adoption of Minutes
	June 28, 2023, Board of Health Meeting Minutes

	Delegation/Presentations
	Local Opioid Update - A holistic approach to addressing & preventing substance use and opioid-related harms

	Business Arising
	Reports to Board
	Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive Officer Report
	Report of MOH CEO - September 2023

	Finance and Audit
	APH Unaudited Financial Statements for the period ending July 31, 2023

	Governance 
	Governance Committee Chair Report - September 13, 2023
	Policy 02-05-055 - Board of Health Self-Evaluation


	New Business
	Briefing Note - Situational awareness of public health sector changes anticipated in 2024-2026
	Strengthening Public Health Stakeholder Meeting Presentation

	Correspondence
	Letter to the Minister of Health from Algoma Public Health regarding support for Bill S-254 an Act to amend the Food and Drug Act (warning labels on alcoholic beverages) dated June 8, 2023
	Email to APH from the office of the Minister of Health, response to letter in support of Bill S-254, an Act to amend the Food and Drug Act, dated August 14, 2023.
	Letter to the Premier of Ontario, from Public Health Sudbury & Districts, regarding Bill 103, Smoke-Free Ontario Amendment Act (Vaping is not for Kids), 2023, dated June 28, 2023.
	Letter to Premier, Deputy Premier, the MCCSS, from APH, re Income-based policy interventions to effectively reduce household food insecurity (HFI), dated July 4, 2023.
	Letter to APH, from the Premier, response to Income-based policy interventions to effectively reduce household food insecurity (HFI) letter of July 4, 2023, dated September 20, 2023.
	Letter to Deputy Premier and MOH, the CMOH, from the AOPHBA, re encourage to create sustained public health funding levels that are supportive of public health's response to the requirements of the Ontario Public Health Standards, dated July 7, 2023. 
	Letter to Minister of Health and Deputy Premier, from Thunder Bay District Health Unit, regarding Letter of Support - Physical Literacy for Healthy Active Children, dated July 14, 2023.
	Letter to Minister of Environment, Conservation and Parks, from Timiskaming Health Unit, regarding Request for Air Quality Monitoring Station in the Timiskaming Health Unit Region, dated August 1, 2023.
	Letter to Premier, Deputy Premier and MOH, City of London, County of Middlesex, MPP London Fanshawe, MPP London North Centre, MPP London West, MPP Elgin-Middlesex-London, MPP for Lambton-Kent-Middlesex, from MLHU, re MLHU 2024 Budget, August 2, 2023
	Letter to the Deputy Premier and Minister of Health, from the Association of Local Public Health Agencies, regarding Public Health Funding and Capacity Announcement, dated August 23, 2023.
	Letter to partner agencies of the Simcoe Muskoka District Health Unit, from Simcoe Muskoka District Health Unit, regarding notice of Clinical Service Vice President and Chief Nursing Officer Position Changes, dated September 1, 2023.
	Letter to the Deputy Premier and Minister of Health, from Simcoe Muskoka District Health Unit regarding Bill 103, Smoke-Free Ontario Amendment Act (Vaping is not for Kids), 2023, dated September 7, 2023. 
	Letter to the Minister of Finance, the Deputy Premier and Minister of Health, from Huron Perth Public Health, regarding Support for Healthy Public Policy Regarding Alcohol Marketplace and Product Sales, dated September 8, 2023. 
	Letter to the Premier of Ontario, from Huron Perth Public Health, regarding Bill 93, Joshua's Law (Lifejackets for Life), 2023, dated September 8, 2023.
	Letter to the Premier of Ontario, the Deputy Premier, Minister of Health, from Timiskaming Health Unit, regarding Universal, No-cost Coverage for all Prescription Contraceptive Options for all Ontarians, dated September 15, 2023.

	Items for Information
	alPHa Information Break - September 2023
	2023 alPHa Fall Symposium
	Health Promotion Ontario White Paper on the Value of Local Health Promotion

	Addendum
	In-Camera
	Open Meeting
	Resolutions Resulting From In-Camera
	Announcements
	Next Meeting Dates

	Adjournment



